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Note: The numbering marked with [ ] within this preliminary final report is consistent with the numbering used in the guidelines issued by the Australian Securities
Exchange (ASX) under ASX Listing Rule 4.3 A.

Current reporting period [1]:

year ended 30 June 2015

Previous corresponding period [1]:

year ended 30 June 2014

Results for announcement to the market
Percentage
change
Up or Down

Amount
%

A$’000

Total sales revenue [2.1]

Down

2.7%

to

527,036

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation &
amortisation (EBITDA)

Down

1.2%

to

77,021

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)

Down

1.2%

to

69,600

Net profit after income tax for the year attributable to
members [2.2] [2.3]

Down

4.3%

to

46,680

Dividends [2.4]

Date paid /
payable [7]

Amount per
security [2.4]

Franked
amount per
security at 30%
tax [2.4]

Amount per
security of
foreign source
dividend [7]

Interim dividend
Current reporting period
Previous corresponding period

2 APR 2015
9 APR 2014

14.0¢
14.0¢

14.0¢
14.0¢

0.0¢
0.0¢

9 OCT 2015
10 OCT 2014

13.0¢
13.0¢

13.0¢
13.0¢

0.0¢
0.0¢

Final dividend
Current reporting period
Previous corresponding period

Ex-dividend date for the final dividend: 16 September 2015
Record date for determining entitlements to the final dividend [2.5]: 18 September 2015

Dividend reinvestment plan [8]
The dividend reinvestment plan will not be in operation for the current reporting period final dividend.
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Brie
ef explanatio
on [2.6]
Plea
ase refer to the
e commentaryy in the operating and financcial review sec
ction of the dirrectors’ report..
For further
f
explanation please refer
r
to the AS
SX report anno
ouncement ac
ccompanying this preliminary
ry final report.

Tota
al dividends
s paid/payab
ble [7]

Interrim dividend p
paid
Fina
al dividend payyable

Current period
A$’0
000
18,213
16,912

Previou
us correspon
nding
period
A$’000
18,213
16,912

Current period
cents per security
110.7¢

Previou
us correspon
nding
period
centts per securitty
106.2¢

Net tangible as
ssets [9]

Net tangible
t
assetts per securityy

Con
ntrol gained or lost over entities [100]
The group has nott gained or losst control of an
ny entities durring the year ended
e
30 June
e 2015.

Ass
sociates and
d joint ventu
ure entities [11]
[
The group held no
o interests in associates
a
or joint
j
ventures during the yea
ar ended 30 June 2015.

Com
mpliance sta
atement
The results for ann
nouncement to
t the market should
s
be read
d in conjunctio
on with the atttached prelimiinary final repo
ort for the yea
ar
ende
ed 30 June 20
015.
No audit
a
dispute o
or qualification
n is contained in the attache
ed independen
nt audit report for the year e nded 30 June
e 2015.

Sign
n here:
Sasha
S
Kitto
Company secretarry

Date
e:

20 August 2015
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Company information
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A description of the group’s operations and of its principal activities is included in the operating and financial review in the directors’
report on pages 7 to 11. The directors’ report is unaudited (except for the remuneration report) and does not form part of the
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Directors’ report
The board of directors of Breville Group Limited (company) has pleasure in submitting its report in respect of the group for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

Board of directors
The names and details of the company’s directors in office during the year and until the date of this report are as below. Unless
indicated otherwise, directors were in office for this entire period.

Steven Fisher
Non-executive chairman
B.ACC, CA(SA)
Mr Fisher has more than 25 years’ experience in general management positions in the wholesale consumer goods industry and is
currently chief executive of the Voyager Group. Prior to entering into the consumer goods industry Mr Fisher was a practicing
chartered accountant having qualified in South Africa with a Bachelor of Accounting degree. In addition, Mr Fisher serves on
various private company boards.
During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Tim Antonie
Non-executive director
BEcon
Mr Antonie has more than 20 years’ experience in investment banking and formerly held positions of Managing Director from 2004
to 2008 and Senior Advisor in 2009 at UBS Investment Banking, with particular focus on large scale mergers and acquisitions and
capital raisings in the Australian retail, consumer, media and entertainment sectors. He holds a Bachelor of Economics degree
from Monash University and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Price Waterhouse.
During the last three years he has served as a non-executive director of the following other listed companies:

Premier Investments Limited #

Village Roadshow Limited #
# denotes current directorship

Sally Herman
Non-executive director
BA, GAICD
Ms Herman is an experienced non-executive director sitting on both public and private company boards in financial services,
retailing, property and consumer goods. She had a long career in financial services in both Australia and the United States,
including 16 years with the Westpac Group, running business units in most operating divisions of the Group. Ms Herman is based
in Sydney and is actively involved in the community, with a particular interest in education, the arts and disability services. She also
chairs the board of an independent girls’ school.
During the last three years she has served as a non-executive director of the following other listed companies:

Premier Investments Limited #

FSA Group Limited
# denotes current directorship

Dean Howell
Non-executive director
FCA, CTA
Mr Howell has had an extensive career in accounting, spanning some 40 years, and accordingly has a wealth of commercial and
advisory experience. He was the former senior partner of a Melbourne firm of chartered accountants and also served on that firm’s
national and international boards. He is currently a consultant with Grant Thornton. He is also a director of Peter MacCallum
Cancer Foundation Ltd.
During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.
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Directors’ report continued
Board of directors continued
Steven Klein
Non-executive director
LLB, B.Com
Mr Klein is a Principal of SBA Law. He has had over 25 years’ experience acting on behalf of both public and private companies in
merger and acquisition transactions.
During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Lawrence Myers
Non-executive director
B.Acct, CA, CTA
Mr Myers has over 20 years’ experience as a practising Chartered Accountant. He is the Managing Director and founder of MBP
Advisory Pty Limited, a high end Sydney firm of Chartered Accountants. Mr Myers sits on numerous private company and not-forprofit boards and acts as a trusted advisor and mentor on business and financial matters. He is a registered auditor and his
specialist areas of practice include business and corporate advisory as well as mergers and acquisitions. Mr Myers is chairman of
the audit and risk committee (A&RC) and since August 2014 is the company’s lead independent director.
During the last three years he has not served as a director of any other listed company.

Samuel Weiss
Non-executive director
AB, Harvard University; MS, Columbia Business School; FAICD
Mr Weiss has had a long corporate career in the United States, Europe and Australia with leading consumer brand companies
such as Nike, Gateway Computers and Sheridan. Mr Weiss is chairman of the people and performance committee.
During the last three years he has served as a director of the following other listed companies:

Altium Limited #

OrotonGroup Limited #

Ensogo Limited (previously iBuy Limited) #

3P Learning Limited #

iProperty Group Limited
# denotes current directorship

Company secretaries
The names and details of the company’s company secretaries in office during the year and until the date of this report are as
below. The company secretaries were in office for this entire period.

Mervyn Cohen
B.Com, B.Acc, CA
Mr Cohen is a chartered accountant and has over 20 years’ experience in senior financial roles after beginning his career in Audit
and Advisory. Mr Cohen is also Chief Financial Officer of the company, a position he had held since October 2006.

Sasha Kitto
LLB, ACA
Ms Kitto is a chartered accountant and has over 15 years’ experience as a practising chartered accountant and in senior finance
roles.
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Directors’ report continued
Reporting currency and rounding
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000)
unless otherwise stated under the option available to the company under ASIC class order 98/100. The company is an entity to
which the class order applies.

Performance indicators
Management and the board monitor the financial performance of the company by measuring actual results against expectations as
developed through an annual business planning and budgeting process.
Appropriate key performance indicators (KPI’s) are used to monitor operating performance and management effectiveness.

Operating and financial review
The operating and financial review has been designed to enhance the periodic financial reporting and provide shareholders with
additional information regarding the group’s operations, financial position, business strategies and prospects. This review
complements the financial report and has been prepared in accordance with the guidance set out in ASIC Regulatory Guide 247.
Company overview
The Group's underlying strategy is the design and development of innovative world class small electrical kitchen appliances and
the effective marketing of these products across multiple geographies to drive growth in sales and profits.
In line with this strategy, the Group has:

built and staffed a world class product development centre in Sydney;

continued to invest in its design and development capabilities;

maintained an efficient procurement and quality assurance centre in Hong Kong;

continued to invest in growth driving marketing activities;

employed experienced marketing and sales executives in its key markets around the world; and

maintained an efficient and effective administration process to support growth initiatives on an international platform.
Principal activities
During the year, the principal activities of the Group were the innovation, development, marketing and distribution of small electrical
appliances. In Australia and New Zealand, the Group principally trades under its company owned brands, Breville and Kambrook
and also distributes a range of Philips products in the personal care and garment care categories under a license agreement with
Philips.
In North America, the Group distributes Breville branded products through premium channels. In the UK, the marketing and
distribution of Breville designed premium flagship products to premium retailers is under the company owned brand, Sage.
The Group’s Hong Kong office performs the functions of a group procurement and quality assurance centre and also, a supplier of
primarily Breville designed products to distributors globally. These distributors are located outside of the Group's principal markets
of Australia, New Zealand, North America and UK. The products sold to distributors located in Europe (excluding UK) are sold on a
non-Breville branded basis. The products sold to distributors outside of Europe, including in the Asia Pacific region, the Middle East
and South America, are Breville branded products.
Strategic initiatives
The Group continues to pursue a number of strategic growth initiatives including establishing important alliances with key industry
participants and internationally recognised “food thinkers”. During the year the Group has continued its investment in product
development and marketing and continued to collaborate with Heston Blumenthal as the Group’s global ambassador for worldwide
advertising and marketing communication.
During the year the Group acquired the culinary division of the USA-based business PolyScience, one of the market leaders in the
sous-vide category in the commercial and professional markets. The product range includes sous-vide, vacuum sealers and other
complementary products.
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Directors’ report continued
Operating and financial review continued
Group operating results
Year to 30 June

2015
$m

2014
$m

Revenue

527.0

541.6

(2.7%)

EBITDA

77.0

77.9

(1.2%)

EBIT

69.6

70.4

(1.2%)

Net profit after taxation

46.7

48.8

(4.3%)

Earnings per share EPS (cents)
1

Return on equity (%)
Dividends per share (cents)
Net cash ($m)

% Change

35.88

37.48

(4.3%)

20.2%
27.0

22.9%
27.0

0.0%

32.8

47.0

Minor differences may arise due to rounding
1
ROE is calculated based on NPAT for the 12 months ended 30 June 2015 (2014: 12 months end 30 June 2014) divided by shareholders’ equity at 30 June.

Revenue of the consolidated entity for the year was $527.0m which was 2.7% lower than the previous corresponding year of
$541.6m.
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) decreased 1.2% on the previous corresponding year to $69.6m.
The Group’s profit after income tax was $46.7m which decreased 4.3% on the previous corresponding year of $48.8m.
The basic earnings per share for the consolidated entity was 35.88 cents per share (2014: 37.48 cents per share).

Segment results
Year to 30 June
2015
$m

REVENUE
2014
%
$m Change

2015
$m

EBIT
2014
$m

%
Change

Australia and New Zealand
(ANZ)

245.1

261.6

(6.3%)

18.3

24.9

(26.2%)

North America

203.1

200.2

1.4%

31.9

30.1

5.9%

Rest of World

78.8

79.8

(1.2%)

20.3

20.2

0.7%

-

-

(0.9)

(4.7)

527.0

541.6

69.6

70.4

Other
TOTAL

(2.7%)

(1.2%)

Minor differences may arise due to rounding

ANZ
Revenue for the year decreased by $16.5m (6.3%) to $245.1m (2014: $261.6m), of which $14.7m related to the second half of the
financial year.
EBIT decreased to $18.3m (2014: $24.9m), impacted in the second half by the one-off disruption and associated costs of the
transition to the new ERP system in Australia during April/May 2015 (approximately $2.0m of EBIT decrease), as well as the
continuation of discount department store retailers favouring their own home brands in the entry to mid-price points in which the
Group’s Kambrook/Ronson brands operate. EBIT was also negatively impacted by the USD, which continued to strengthen during
the period.
Price increases effected in both the first and the second half of the financial year, along with the benefit of cost efficiency savings,
did not fully offset the negative currency impact and volume shortfall.
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Directors’ report continued
Operating and financial review continued
Segment results continued
North America
North American revenue for the year increased by 1.4% to $203.1m (2014: $200.2m). In the second half of the financial year
revenue increased 24.1% in AUD (8.8% in local currencies) compared to the prior corresponding period. This positive revenue
result was underpinned by growth in core categories, following a soft first half where revenue was $14.0m or 10.8% less than the
prior corresponding period as the juicer category continued to re-set.
EBIT for the year increased by 5.9% to $31.9m (2014: $30.1m). A more favourable product mix and lower warranty expenses on
certain SKU’s which were being phased out, contributed to the increase in the segment EBIT margin to 15.7% (2014: 15.0%).
Rest of World
This segment comprises the Rest of the World distribution business supplied from Hong Kong as well as the Group’s UK business.
Revenue decreased by 1.2% to $78.8m (2014: $79.8m) whilst EBIT increased by 0.7% to $20.3m (2014: $20.2m). Lower Rest of
World distribution business revenue in the year was largely offset by higher revenue in the UK which reported double digit revenue
growth in the year.
A number of our European distribution partners are experiencing both economic and competitive challenges in their markets, which
impacted Rest of World revenue.
Other
The Group’s Other reporting segment includes the Group’s shared service facility, design and development and global marketing
functions, as well as the amortisation charge on capitalised product development projects.
The net change from the prior year is attributable to a net over-recovery of intra-group charges and lower employee short term and
long term incentive expenses.
The higher net finance costs relate to the discounting, required for accounting purposes, of the long term payable in respect of the
expected future earn-out associated with the July 2014 acquisition of the culinary division of the USA based PolyScience business.

Advertising and marketing expenses
Consistent with the Group’s intention of building awareness of its brands locally and internationally, the Group continues its
investment in growth driving marketing activities. The importance of online consumer research, reviews and communication
continues to increase. The Group invests in communicating its products’ features and benefits through traditional and digital media,
including emerging social media channels. In the online world of consumer reviews, consumer blogs and online sales, the quality
and performance of Breville’s products together with credible endorsements, will be a key to the Group’s future success.

Financial position
The total investment in working capital ended higher compared to that of the prior year.
Inventory balances at 30 June 2015 of $108.3m (2014: $94.3m) were $14.0m higher than the prior year, of which approximately
$8.5m is due to the translation effect of a weaker AUD when converting non-AUD denominated balances into AUD. The remaining
increase is broadly distributed across all regions.
Receivables compared to the prior year were $8.9m higher, of which approximately $4.7m relates to the translation impact of the
weaker AUD compared to the previous year. The remaining increase is primarily due to higher North American revenue in local
currencies in the last quarter of the 2015 financial year compared to the same period in the prior year.
Net cash at 30 June 2015 was $32.8m (2014: $47.0m).
Operating cash flow for the year was $45.7m (2014: $51.2m).

Capital expenditure
During the year, the Group completed its investment in its previously highlighted capital expenditure projects; the relocation of its
Sydney-based Australian business and corporate head office to new leased premises and the implementation of and transition to a
new ERP system within the ANZ segment.
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Directors’ report continued
Operating and financial review continued
Foreign exchange exposures
The Group operates in various countries and is subject to a number of exchange rate influences on its earnings.
Firstly, the Group has a transactional exposure as its product purchases are primarily paid for in US dollars. In Australia, New
Zealand, Canada and the UK, the exchange rate impacts product costs as the US dollar changes relative to those countries’
functional currencies. A stronger US dollar will generally have a negative effect on the Group’s reported earnings in terms of this
transactional exposure.
The Group also has a translational exposure as its international earnings, a large portion of which are denominated in US dollars,
are translated into Australian dollars for reporting purposes. A higher US dollar relative to the Australian dollar will generally have a
positive effect on the Group’s reported earnings in terms of this translational exposure.
The transactional and translational exposures are considered to result in a partial natural hedge from a Group perspective. A weak
Australian dollar is likely to have an adverse impact on the ANZ segment’s earnings (as a result of higher landed costs) but a
positive impact on the translation of non-Australian dollar denominated results.

Consumer demand risk
Given the Group’s reliance on consumer discretionary spending, adverse changes to the general economic and retail landscape
and consumer sentiment in the principal markets in which the Group operates, will impact its financial results. The Group mitigates
this risk by continued communication with its consumers to gain greater insight into the changing world of food and beverage
trends and by keeping abreast with global economic and consumer data and industry trends.

Margin risk
The highly competitive nature of the small domestic appliance market together with changes in manufacturing costs, including
commodity prices, will have an impact on the Group’s financial results. This risk is mitigated by protecting the Group's intellectual
property, brand building initiatives, introducing elements of variability into its cost structure and strengthening its long term supplier
relationships.

Group strategies and prospects
The ongoing investment in innovation provides a strong platform to increase the portfolio of some of the world’s best kitchen
products, to expand the Group’s geographic reach and to continue to grow global volumes. Although the economic environment
remains uncertain, product development and brand management strengths coupled with a strong balance sheet, mean that the
Group is well positioned to take advantage of future growth opportunities.

Sustainability and social responsibility
The Group is committed to ethical, responsible and sustainable conduct across the entire business. The Group is determined to
build a culture through the commitment of its employees, to reduce the organisation’s impact on the environment and increase its
contribution to society.
In Australia, the Group is a committed signatory to the Australian Packaging Covenant in the reduction of the potential impact of its
products, packaging and warehouse operations on the environment. It has also implemented improved waste reduction and
recycling practices in its global test kitchens.
The Group integrates actions and goals into existing business systems so that sustainable packaging considerations become ‘just
how we do business’. Success is being achieved via cross functional teams working together to implement the Group’s
Sustainable Packaging Policy.
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Directors’ report continued
Operating and financial review continued
Ethical sourcing
The Group is committed to conducting business in a socially responsible manner and managing its business to reflect high ethical
and moral values. The Group expects its vendors to respect and adhere to the same philosophy in the operation and management
of their businesses and reserves the right not to do business with vendors that do not share and demonstrate commitment to
compliance with local and internationally accepted labour and employment laws.
The Group has an ethical sourcing policy which includes an ethical sourcing requirements code (‘code’) which sets out the
minimum requirements and expectations that all vendors, including sub-contractors engaged by vendors, must comply with. The
code specifies compliance in areas such as wages and benefit policies, child labour, working hours, discrimination, health and
safety and environmental practices.
Suppliers are required to contractually recognise the code and acknowledge their acceptance of these requirements. New
suppliers are required to undergo an independent audit to verify that they are in compliance with local laws and safety conditions.
Factory visits are conducted by senior management on a regular basis. The Group also uses internationally recognised
independent audit firms to verify compliance with local laws and safety conditions at selected vendors and compliance with the
Breville Group ethical sourcing policy.

Anti-bribery and corruption
The Group is committed to operating in a manner consistent with the laws of the jurisdictions in which its businesses operate,
including those relating to anti-bribery and corruption. Honesty, integrity and trust are considered integral to the ethos of the
Group, its products and its brands. Conduct associated with bribery and corruption is inconsistent with these values. Accordingly,
the Group adopts a “zero tolerance” approach in relation to these matters.
The Group has an anti-bribery policy which, in conjunction with the code of conduct and whistleblowing policy, sets out the
responsibilities of all the Group’s employees (including contractors) and directors with regard to dealing with outside parties and
prohibits all Group personnel in all jurisdictions in which the company operates or conducts commercial activities, from engaging in
any activity that constitutes bribery or corruption and other improper inducements and/or payments.
In order to ensure that these values and the policy are properly adhered to, the Group has appointed an Anti-Bribery Compliance
Officer who is responsible for monitoring the application of this policy.

Risk management
The company’s risk management is discussed in the corporate governance statement on page 26.

Dividends
The following dividends have been paid, declared or recommended since the end of the preceding year.
Cents per
ordinary share

Final dividend recommended:

$’000

13.0

16,912

Interim FY15 dividend paid

14.0

18,213

Final FY14 dividend paid

13.0

16,912

Dividends paid in the year:

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the year that have not
otherwise been disclosed in this report or the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ report continued
Directors’ interests
As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares or other instruments of Breville Group Limited were:
Ordinary shares
S. Fisher
T. Antonie
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein
L. Myers
S. Weiss

50,288
8,000
100,000
117,189
20,000
121,775

Remuneration report (audited)
This remuneration report outlines the compensation arrangements in place for directors and executives (collectively “key
management personnel”) of Breville Group Limited. For the purposes of this report, key management personnel (KMP) of the
group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of
the group, directly or indirectly.

Details of key management personnel
Below are details of the KMP of the Group during the financial year ended 30 June 2015. Unless otherwise indicated, the
individuals were KMP for the entire financial year.
(i) Directors:
S. Fisher
T. Antonie
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein
L. Myers
S. Weiss

Non-executive chairman
Non-executive director
Non-executive director
Non-executive director
Non-executive director
Non-executive director and chairman of audit and risk committee
Non-executive director and chairman of people and performance committee

(ii) Executives:
J. Lord
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais

Group chief executive officer – resigned 21 August 2014
General manager - global marketing
Group chief financial officer and interim group chief executive officer*
Group general manager - business development and operations

*M. Cohen served as interim group chief executive officer from 21 August 2014 to 30 June 2015
Other than the appointment of J. Clayton as Group chief executive officer as from 1 July 2015, there were no other changes to
KMP after the reporting date and before the date the financial report was authorised for issue.

Compensation philosophy
The performance of the company depends, in part, upon the quality of its directors and executives. The company must attract,
retain, motivate and develop highly skilled directors and executives in order to secure the short and long term success of the
business so to enhance shareholder value.
Based on this philosophy, the company’s compensation strategy and framework embodies two interrelated outcomes: improved
business results and building a culture of high performance.
The following principles define the compensation framework:
 Provide competitive rewards (for fixed and variable compensation) to attract high calibre employees;
 Link reward to sustained growth in shareholder value from dividends and growth in share price and the delivery of a consistent
return on assets;
 Link rewards with the strategic goals and performance of the company; and
 Reinforce a competitive business strategy to deliver organisational success and enhanced shareholder value.

People and performance committee
The people and performance committee of the board of directors of the company is responsible for reviewing and recommending
to the board executive and employee remuneration arrangements and executive succession as set out in the people and
performance committee charter.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
People and performance committee continued
The people and performance committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of compensation of executives
and employees on an annual basis by reference to relevant individual and company performance and market conditions.
The people and performance committee is responsible for the engagement of any external compensation consultants for work on
executive remuneration.

Compensation structure
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive compensation is
separate and distinct.

Non-executive director compensation
Objective
The board seeks to set compensation at a level which provides the company with the ability to attract and retain directors of high
calibre whilst maintaining a level commensurate with companies of a similar size and type.

Structure
The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate compensation of non-executive directors shall be
determined from time to time by general meeting. The aggregate compensation of $950,000 per year was approved by
shareholders at the annual general meeting held in November 2010.
The compensation of non-executive directors is reviewed annually. Each director receives a fee for being a director of the
company. An additional fee is also paid to each director who also acts as chairman of a board committee. The payment of
additional fees for acting as chairman of a committee recognises the additional time commitment required by the director to
facilitate the running of the committee.
The compensation of non-executive directors for the year ended 30 June 2015 is detailed in Table 1 on page 18 of this report.

Executive compensation
Objective
The company aims to remunerate and reward executives with a level and mix of compensation commensurate with their positions
and responsibilities within the company and to:

Reward executives for company and individual performance against specific targets set with reference to business objectives
and results;

Align the interest, focus and performance of the executives with those of the shareholders;

Attract, retain and motivate high performing executives; and

Ensure total compensation is competitive by market standards.

Structure
In determining the level and make-up of executive compensation, the people and performance committee may engage an external
consultant as appropriate, to provide independent advice detailing market related levels of compensation. No such external
consultants were engaged for the year ended 30 June 2015. The group chief executive officer makes recommendations to the
people and performance committee for consideration.
Employment contracts are entered into with executives. Details of the contracts are provided on page 17.
Compensation consists of the following key elements:

Fixed compensation

Variable compensation
o Short term incentive (STI); and
o Long term incentive (LTI)
The proportion of the fixed compensation and variable compensation (potential short term and long term incentives) is established
for each executive by the people and performance committee and approved by the board.
Table 3 on page 20 of this report details the components (%) of the compensation of key management personnel of the group.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Fixed compensation
Objective
Fixed compensation is set to provide a base level of compensation which is appropriate to the position and responsibility and is
competitive in the market.
Fixed compensation is reviewed annually by the people and performance committee. The process consists of reviewing company
and individual performance, relevant comparative market compensation, internal relativities and, where appropriate, external
advice on policies and practices.

Structure
Executives are given the opportunity to receive their fixed compensation in a variety of forms including cash and non-cash benefits.

Variable compensation – short term incentive (STI)
Objective
The objective of the STI plan is to reward executives and other employees on the achievement of company and individual value
adding performance objectives established annually, providing them with the opportunity to earn over and above their fixed
compensation should the agreed objectives be achieved. Depending upon their position and seniority in the organisation,
executives and other employees are eligible for a STI award of between 20% - 50% of their fixed or base annual remuneration.
The incentive payment is based on the achievement of financial and non-financial objectives, with the former dependant upon a
multiplier in accordance with a sliding scale. Objectives for each participant are determined on an individual basis aligned to
enhance shareholder value.
The principle objectives of the plan are:

To ensure that the company delivers its primary financial results and achieves its targets every year to deliver sustainable
performance and continued organisational growth;

To achieve business goals through rewarding value adding individual performance;

To contribute to the development of a performance culture across the company; and

To promote and facilitate the concept of shared ownership whereby executives and employees who contribute to the success
of the company will also share in that success.
The total potential STI available is set at a level to provide an incentive to the executives and employees to achieve and exceed
personal, financial and operational targets.

Structure
Actual STI payments are determined on the basis of the achievement of specific targets and objectives set at the commencement
of the year. Financial performance targets include net profit before tax. Individual objectives are aligned to the non-financial
components of the Group strategy. The company has predetermined financial performance benchmarks which must be met in
order to trigger payments under the STI plan and these are varied on a yearly basis in line with the annual budgeting process.
On an annual basis, after consideration of performance against the established targets/objectives, incorporating both company
financial targets and individual objectives, the group chief executive officer recommends to the people and performance committee
an amount, if any, of the STI payment each executive (excluding the group chief executive officer) is eligible to receive. This
recommendation, together with a recommendation by the people and performance committee of an amount if any, of the STI
payment the group chief executive officer is eligible to receive, is then put to the board for approval. The group chief executive
officer may also award discretionary bonuses to recognise and reward key contributions from high performing employees. All
discretionary bonuses are presented as recommendations to the people and performance committee and the board for approval.
The aggregate of the annual STI payments available for executives across the company is subject to the approval of the people
and performance committee and the board and payments are typically paid in cash. The minimum amount of the STI payments
assuming that no executives meet their respective targets/objectives (including company financial targets and individual objectives)
for the 2015 financial year is nil (2014: nil).
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Variable compensation – long term incentive (LTI)
Objective
The objective of the LTI plan is to reward executives and other employees in a manner that aligns this element of compensation
with the creation of shareholder value.
The LTI plan is only made available to executives and other employees who are able to influence the generation of shareholder
value and have a direct impact on the company’s performance against relevant long term performance hurdles. Depending upon
their position and seniority in the organisation, executives and other employees are eligible for a LTI award of between 20% - 50%
of their fixed annual compensation.

Structure – performance rights plan
LTI grants to executives and other employees (collectively “participants”) are provided in the form of performance rights awards
issued in accordance with the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan (PRP). LTI grants to participants (excluding the
group chief executive officer) are recommended by the group chief executive officer to the people and performance committee.
This recommendation, together with a recommendation by the people and performance committee of a LTI grant to the group chief
executive officer, is then put to the board for approval.
An offer under the PRP grants a participant the right to a certain number of fully paid ordinary shares in the company. Upon
satisfaction of the performance hurdles, the right will vest and be convertible into shares. The company uses time-based and
financial-based hurdles. Earnings per share (EPS) is the financial-based performance hurdle for the LTI plan. EPS represents the
earnings per share from operations adjusted for non-trading items. The use of EPS ensures an alignment between shareholder
return and reward for participants.
In addition to the grant of performance rights awards which are subject to an EPS performance hurdle, performance rights awards
may also be granted in accordance with the PRP as a retention award where the performance condition is continued employment
with the company to vesting date.
If the performance hurdle is not met or if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, any unvested performance rights
will lapse unless otherwise determined by the board. There are no cash alternatives. The performance rights cannot be transferred
and are not quoted on the ASX. Holders of performance rights are not entitled to notice of, or attend, a meeting of shareholders of
the company, or receive any dividends declared by the company, until the rights have vested and then converted into shares.
Once allocated, disposal of shares is subject to restrictions whereby board approval is required to sell the shares granted within
three years of the shares being allocated to the participant or; if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, within
twelve months of the date employment ceases; or such other date as the board determines.
In the event of a takeover bid where the bidder and its associates become entitled to at least 50% of the voting shares of the
company, any performance rights granted will vest where the board, in its absolute discretion, is satisfied that pro rata performance
is in line with any performance condition applicable to those performance rights. Any performance rights which do not vest will
immediately lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.

Other
The number of ordinary shares in the company which could be acquired by executives and other employees holding performance
rights if all outstanding performance rights were vested shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the company.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Variable compensation – long term incentive (LTI) continued
Relationship of rewards to performance
The table below shows the details of LTI plans for which compensation has been included in the remuneration tables on pages 18
and 19 of this report.
LTI Plan (for
the year
ended)

Performance hurdles/conditions

Number
outstanding
30 June 2015
(Executive
only)
-

Number
outstanding
30 June 2014
(Executive
only)
152,000

Performance
rights
June 2012

- Issued for nil consideration.
- Exercise price is $0.
- Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number
of performance rights:
(a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 must be at
least 33.50 cents per share.
(b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 must
be at least 36.50 cents per share.
- 100% vested as at 30 June 2015.

Performance
rights
June 2013

- Issued for nil consideration.
- Exercise price is $0.
- Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number
of performance rights:
(a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 must be at
least 43.22 cents per share.
(b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 must
be at least 47.33 cents per share.
- 0% vested as at 30 June 2015.

66,000

156,000

Performance
rights
June 2014

- Issued for nil consideration.
- Exercise price is $0.
- Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number
of performance rights:
(a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 must be at
least 46.00 cents per share.
(b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 must
be at least 49.20 cents per share.
- 0% vested as at 30 June 2015.

41,000

84,000

Performance
rights
June 2015

- Issued for nil consideration.
- Exercise price is $0.
- Term of three years and there are 2 performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number
of performance rights:
(a) Base EPS hurdle – to vest, group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2017 must be at
least 46.50 cents per share.
(b) Stretch EPS hurdle – to vest, the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2017 must
be at least 51.50 cents per share.
- 0% vested as at 30 June 2015.

52,000

-
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Group performance
The table below shows the performance of the group over the past five years.
Year ended
Underlying basic earnings per share (cents)
Basic earnings per share (cents)
Total dividends (cents)
Share price at 30 June ($)

30 June
2011
27.61
24.47
16.50
3.30

30 June
2012
35.35
35.35
24.00
4.38

30 June
2013
38.23
38.23
26.00
7.06

30 June
2014
37.48
37.48
27.00
8.11

30 June
2015
35.88
35.88
27.00
6.21

Employment contracts
None of the key management personnel have fixed term employment contracts. Amounts payable on termination vary from a
minimum statutory entitlement to a maximum of 12 months based on a calculation of total fixed remuneration (which includes base
salary, superannuation and allowances (if applicable)). In accordance with the terms of the performance rights plan, any
performance rights not vested at the date of termination will be forfeited and shall lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.

Prohibition on hedging by key management personnel
The group has adopted a policy which prohibits key management personnel and their closely related parties from entering into an
arrangement that has the effect of limiting the exposure of a member of the key management personnel to risk relating to an
element of that member's compensation. The policy complies with the requirements of s.206J of the Corporations Act 2001.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Remuneration of key management personnel
Table 1: Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2015
Postemployment
benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Non-executive directors
S. Fisher – chairman
T. Antonie
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein (a)
L. Myers
S. Weiss
Sub-total non-executive directors
Other key management personnel
S. Brady (b)
M. Cohen (b),(c)
C. Dais (b)
J. Lord (d)
Sub-total executive KMP

Totals

Salary &
fees

Cash
bonuses

Other

$

$

$

Total short
term
employee
benefits

Termination
payments

Superannuation

$

Long-term
employee
benefits

Share-based
payment

Long service
leave

Performance
rights

$

$

Total

$

183,066
102,974
102,974
90,474
112,500
115,789
115,789
823,566

-

-

183,066
102,974
102,974
90,474
112,500
115,789
115,789
823,566

17,391
9,783
9,783
22,283
11,000
11,000
81,240

-

-

-

200,457
112,757
112,757
112,757
112,500
126,789
126,789
904,806

372,061
703,205
473,052
107,373
1,655,691
2,479,257

-

30,000
30,000
60,000
60,000

402,061
733,205
473,052
107,373
1,715,691
2,539,257

38,196
35,000
11,635
84,831
166,071

698,387
698,387
698,387

30,677
12,758
(62,779)
(19,344)
(19,344)

(20,899)
(26,667)
(21,231)
(205,382)
(274,179)
(274,179)

450,035
754,296
451,821
549,234
2,205,386
3,110,192

Note
(a) S. Klein is a principal of the legal firm SBA Law. His director’s fees (which are subject to GST) were paid to SBA Law and are shown above net of GST.
(b) Share-based payment represents the net reversal of related non-cash expenditure due to the uncertainty in achieving the non-market vesting conditions.
(c) M. Cohen received additional remuneration as interim CEO in FY15.
(d) J. Lord ceased employment on 21 August 2014, and ceased to be key management personnel on that date. Share-based payment for J. Lord includes the reversal of non-cash expenditure following cessation of
employment and the forfeiture and lapse of unvested performance rights.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Remuneration of key management personnel continued
Table 2: Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014
Post-employment benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Non-executive directors
S. Fisher – chairman
T.Antonie (a)
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein (b)
L. Myers (c)
J. Schmoll (d)
S. Weiss
Sub-total non-executive directors
Other key management personnel
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord
Sub-total executive KMP

Totals

Salary &
fees

Cash
bonuses

Other

$

$

$

Total short
term
employee
benefits

Superannuation

$

Long-term
employee
benefits

Share-based
payment

Long service
leave

Performance
rights

$

$

Total

$

183,066
54,259
102,975
109,037
112,500
91,905
17,823
115,789
787,354

-

-

183,066
54,259
102,975
109,037
112,500
91,905
17,823
115,789
787,354

16,934
5,019
9,525
10,086
8,501
1,649
10,711
62,425

-

-

200,000
59,278
112,500
119,123
112,500
100,406
19,472
126,500
849,779

304,854
373,400
468,913
725,000
1,872,167
2,659,521

73,441
73,441
73,441

30,000
30,000
60,000
60,000

334,854
403,400
542,354
725,000
2,005,608
2,792,962

30,974
25,000
25,000
80,974
143,399

4,952
5,951
8,594
19,497
19,497

62,460
81,997
57,471
167,957
369,885
369,885

433,240
516,348
599,825
926,551
2,475,964
3,325,743

Note
(a) T. Antonie was appointed 18 December 2013, effective 19 December 2013.
(b) S. Klein is a principal of the legal firm SBA Law. His director’s fees (which are subject to GST) were paid to SBA Law and are shown above net of GST.
(c) L. Myers was appointed 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013.
(d) J. Schmoll resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013.

.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Remuneration of key management personnel continued
Table 3: Key management personnel compensation mix
Name
Non-executive directors
S. Fisher
T. Antonie (b)
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein
L. Myers (c)
J. Schmoll (d)
S. Weiss
Other key management
personnel
S. Brady
M.Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Fixed compensation
2015
2014

Short term incentive
2015
2014

Long term incentive (a)
2015
2014

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

-

-

-

-

104.64%
103.54%
104.70%
137.39%

85.58%
84.12%
78.18%
81.87%

-

12.24%
-

(4.64%)
(3.54%)
(4.70%)
(37.39%)

14.42%
15.88%
9.58%
18.13%

LTI values are based on the accounting value of performance rights.
T. Antonie became key management personnel on 19 December 2013.
L. Myers became key management personnel on 1 September 2013.
J. Schmoll resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013 and ceased to be key management personnel on that date.

Table 4: Other key management personnel cash bonuses and share-based compensation
Cash bonuses

Share-based compensation

% Earned
2015

% Forfeited
2015

Year
granted

% Vested
2015

% Forfeited
2015

-

100.00%

M.Cohen

-

100.00%

C. Dais

-

100.00%

J. Lord

-

100.00%

2015
2014
2013
2012
2015
2014
2013
2012
2015
2014
2013
2012
2015
2014
2013
2012

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
-

Name
S. Brady
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Remuneration of key management personnel continued
Table 5: Shareholdings of key management personnel
Ordinary shares held* in Breville Group Limited (number)

30 June 2015
Directors
S. Fisher
T. Antonie
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein
L. Myers
S. Weiss
Other key management personnel
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord (b)
Total

30 June 2014
Directors
S. Fisher
T. Antonie
S. Herman
D. Howell
S. Klein
L. Myers
J. Schmoll (c)
S. Weiss
Other key management personnel
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord
Total

Balance at
1 July 2014

On exercise of
performance
rights

Net change
other (a)

Balance at
30 June 2015

50,288
8,000
100,000
117,189
10,000
121,775

-

10,000
-

50,288
8,000
100,000
117,189
20,000
121,775

315,732
308,000
285,000
1,315,984

35,000
39,000
31,000
47,000
152,000

(179,000)
(10,300)
(332,000)
(511,300)

350,732
168,000
20,700
956,684

Balance at
1 July 2013

On exercise of
performance
rights

Net change
other (a)

Balance at
30 June 2014

50,288
8,000
100,000
117,189
100,000
121,775

-

10,000
(100,000)
-

50,288
8,000
100,000
117,189
10,000
121,775

276,732
305,500
220,000
1,299,484

39,000
72,500
105,000
216,500

(70,000)
(40,000)
(200,000)

315,732
308,000
285,000
1,315,984

* Held directly, indirectly or beneficially.
(a) All equity transactions with key management personnel have been entered into under terms and conditions no more
favourable than those the group would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length.
(b) J. Lord ceased employment on 21 August 2014 and ceased to be key management personnel on that date.
(c) J. Schmoll resigned 19 August 2013, effective 1 September 2013 and ceased to be key management personnel on that date.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Performance rights
Table 6: Performance rights granted
The terms and conditions of each grant of performance rights affecting remuneration of key management personnel
in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows:

Grant Date *
12 Oct 11 (a)
2 Oct 12 (b)
2 Oct 13 (c)
7 Oct 14 (d)

First
exercise
date
1 Sept 14
3 Sept 15
2 Sept 16
4 Sept 17

Last
exercise
date
3 Oct 14
5 Oct 15
5 Oct 16
5 Oct 17

Expiry
date
3 Oct 14
5 Oct 15
5 Oct 16
5 Oct 17

Exercise
price
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Fair value per
performance
right at grant
date ($)
(Note 27)
2.41
4.73
7.61
6.10

Vested and
exercised
30 June 2015
100%
-

Vested and
exercised
30 June 2014
-

(a) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance rights granted - Base EPS (group underlying
EPS for the year ending 30 June 2014 is at least 33.50 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June
2014 is at least 36.50 cents per share).
(b) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance shares granted – Base EPS (group underlying
EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 43.22 cents per share) and Stretch EPS (group underlying EPS is at least 47.33 cents per
share).
(c) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance shares granted – Base EPS (group underlying
EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016, is at least 46.00 cents per share) and stretch EPS (group underlying EPS is at least 49.20 cents per
share).
(d) There are two performance hurdles each representing 50% of the total number of performance shares granted – Base EPS (group underlying
EPS for the year ending 30 June 2017, is at least 46.50 cents per share) and stretch EPS (group underlying EPS is at least 51.50 cents per
share).
*

In addition to the EPS performance hurdle, the participant must be employed by the company on the vesting date.

Table 7: Performance rights and options holdings of key management personnel

30 June 2015
Other key management
personnel
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord (c)

30 June 2014
Other key management
personnel
S. Brady
M. Cohen
C. Dais
J. Lord

Balance
30 June 2014

Granted as
remuneration
(a)

67,000
78,000
67,000
180,000
392,000

15,000
18,000
19,000
52,000

Balance
30 June 2013

Granted as
remuneration
(a)

94,000
135,500
53,000
279,234
561,734

12,000
15,000
14,000
43,000
84,000

Vested and
exercised

(35,000)
(39,000)
(31,000)
(47,000)
(152,000)

Vested and
exercised

(39,000)
(72,500)
(105,000)
(216,500)

Other (b)

(133,000)
(133,000)

Other (b)

(37,234)
(37,234)

Balance
30 June 2015

47,000
57,000
55,000
159,000

Balance
30 June 2014

67,000
78,000
67,000
180,000
392,000

(a) All performance awards granted during the year are subject to EPS performance hurdles and remaining in employment until date of vesting.
(b) Includes forfeitures and lapses.
(c) J. Lord ceased employment on 21 August 2014 and ceased to be key management personnel on that date.
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Directors’ report continued
Remuneration report (audited) continued
Other transactions and balances with key management personnel and their related parties services
Mr Klein is a principal of SBA Law and his director’s fees are paid to SBA Law. These fees are subject to GST.
Fees totalling $391,286 (inclusive of GST), including Mr Klein’s director’s fees, were invoiced by SBA Law during the current
financial year (2014: $287,482). These fees were all on arm’s length terms.
Total amounts recognised at the reporting date in relation to other transactions and balances with key management personnel:

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

21
21

40
40

113
243
356

113
148
261

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Expenses
Employee expenses (director’s fees)
Professional fees
Total expenses (GST exclusive)

Directors’ meetings
The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the number of
meetings attended by each director was as follows:

Number of meetings
S. Fisher (a)
T. Antonie (b)
S. Herman (d)
D. Howell
S. Klein (a),(e)
L. Myers
S. Weiss

Full board

Audit & risk
(A&RC)

People and
performance

13

4

3

13(c)
13
13
13
13
13
12

n/a
n/a
n/a
4
n/a
4(c)
4

3
n/a
3
3
n/a
3
3(c)

Notes
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

S. Fisher and S. Klein resigned from the audit and risk committee effective 20 August 2014.
T. Antonie is not a member of either the audit and risk committee or the people and performance committee.
Designates the current chairman of the board or committee.
S. Herman is not a member of the audit and risk committee but is a member of the people and performance committee.
S. Klein is not a member of the people and performance committee.
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Directors’ report continued
Committee membership
As at the date of this report, the company had an audit and risk committee and a people and performance committee. The details
of the functions and memberships of the committees are presented in the corporate governance statement.

Indemnification of directors and officers
The directors and officers of the company are indemnified by the company against losses or liabilities which they may sustain or
incur as an officer of the company in the proper performance of their duties. During the financial year, the company paid premiums
in respect of contracts to insure the directors and officers of the company against a liability to the extent permitted by the
Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of liability and the amount of the premiums.

Indemnification of auditors
To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young, as part of the terms of its audit
engagement agreement, against all claims by third parties arising from the audit, except to the extent that any losses are due to
Ernst & Young’s negligent, wrongful or wilful acts or omissions. No payments have been made to indemnify Ernst & Young during
or since the financial year.

Likely developments and expected results
Disclosure of information as to likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and expected results of those
operations would be prejudicial to the interests of the consolidated entity. Accordingly, such information has not been included in
this report.

Environmental regulations and performance
The consolidated entity is not involved in any activities that have a marked influence on the environment within its area of
operation.

Corporate governance
In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Breville Group Limited
support the principles of good corporate governance. The company’s corporate governance statement is on page 26.

Performance rights
Unissued shares
As at the date of this report and the reporting date, there were 558,000 potential unissued shares under performance rights (2014:
920,000). Refer to note 27 of the financial report for further details of the performance rights outstanding. Performance right
holders do not have any right, by virtue of the performance right, to participate in any share issue of the company.

Lapse of unvested performance rights
During the year, 180,000 unvested performance rights lapsed following the cessation of employment of employees or executives.
(2014: 37,234 unvested performance rights lapsed, as performance hurdles were not met).

Auditor’s declaration of independence
Attached is a copy of the auditor’s declaration provided under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit for
the year ended 30 June 2015. This auditor’s declaration forms part of this directors’ report.

Non-audit services
During the financial year ended 30 June 2015 the company’s primary auditor, Ernst & Young Australia did not provide any nonaudit services.
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Corporate governance statement
The board of directors is responsible for the corporate
governance practices of the company and is committed to
adhering to the Australian Securities Exchange (‘ASX’)
Corporate Governance Council (‘council’) ‘Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations (3rd Edition)’
The ASX principles that have been adopted are outlined
below.
The company’s corporate governance practices throughout
the year ended 30 June 2015 were compliant with the
council’s principles and recommendations, except for those
differences disclosed and explained in this statement.

The following documents are available on the corporate,
corporate governance section of the company’s website
brevillegroup.com













selection and appointment of directors
criteria for assessing independence
code of conduct
continuous disclosure policy
share trading policy
shareholder communications policy
board charter
audit and risk committee charter
people and performance committee charter
diversity policy
workplace gender equality agency report
ethical sourcing policy

Board skills matrix
The skills, diversity and term in office of the current directors as at the date of this annual report are as follows:
Director
Steven Fisher
(chairman)
Tim Antonie
Sally Herman
Dean Howell
Steven Klein
Lawrence Myers
Samuel Weiss

Appointed
2004

Term in
Office
11 years

2013
2013
2008
2003
2013
2008

1 year
2 years
7 years
12 years
1 year
7 years

Qualifications
B.ACC, CA (SA)
BEcon
BA, GAICD
FCA, CTA
LLB, B.Com
B.Acct, CA, CTA
AB, Harvard University;
MS, Columbia Business
School; FAICD

The board has a wide range of skills which are necessary for
the effective management of the business including in the
following areas:

Corporate strategy and executive leadership

Banking

Legal and risk management

Compliance and governance

Accounting, tax and financial reporting, including
financial analysis

Mergers, acquisitions and capital raisings

Human resources and executive remuneration

Investor relations

International business

Marketing

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for
management and oversight
Role of the board and management
The board guides and monitors the business and affairs of
the company on behalf of the shareholders, by whom it is
elected and to whom it is accountable. The board has
adopted formal guidelines for board operation and
membership. These guidelines outline the roles and
responsibilities of the board and its members and establish
the relationship between the board and management.

Nonexecutive
Yes

Independent

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

No

Last
elected
2013

No
No
Yes
No
Yes
Yes

2014
2013
2014
2014
2013
2014

The board will regularly review its performance and the
performance of its committees. The respective roles and
responsibilities of the board and management are outlined
further in the board charter.

Appointment of board members
A detailed process is undertaken for the appointment of new
board members, including appropriate checks as to
background, history and any potential conflicts of interest.
As at the date of this annual report, all directors have a
written agreement outlining their roles and responsibilities.
New directors receive a comprehensive briefing package
prior to their appointment.

Company secretary
The company secretary is directly accountable to the board
on all matters relating to the proper functioning of the board.

The board is responsible for approving the strategic direction
of the company, establishing goals for management,
monitoring the achievement of those goals and establishing
a sound system of risk oversight and management.
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Corporate governance statement continued
Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for
management and oversight continued
Diversity policy
The company is an equal opportunity employer and values
differences such as gender, age, culture, disability, ethnicity
and lifestyle choices. The company’s diversity policy aims to
ensure a corporate culture that supports workplace diversity
whilst providing access to equal opportunities at work based
on merit. This policy is available on the company’s website
at the corporate, corporate governance section and is
subject to periodic review by, and may be changed by
resolution of the board. The policy has no contractual effect.

Diversity policy objectives
The objectives set by the board in accordance with the
diversity policy and progress towards achieving them are:

Representation of women trained in recruitment and
selection panels: Ongoing progress was made during
the year with further women being trained;

Issuing the company equal opportunity statement to
recruiting agencies: This continued in Australia during
the year;

Explicit requirement of recruiting agencies to provide a
gender balance of suitable, qualified, shortlisted
candidates for interview: This initiative continued to
progress during the year;

Promoting a safe workplace free from harassment or
discrimination of any kind: Training and education
programs which included topics on harassment,
bullying, victimisation and discrimination were
conducted in Australia and the USA during the year;

Enhancing the gender balance in career development
in senior and managerial roles; and

Continue flexible working arrangements where
operationally appropriate.
The proportion of women employees in the company and the
current targets are as follows:

The people and performance committee shall:

report to the board at least annually, on the company’s
progress in achieving the objectives set for achieving
gender diversity;

regularly oversee a review of the relative proportion of
women across the company and their relative
positions; and

consider other initiatives to promote diversity in the
workplace.

Workplace equality
In accordance with the requirements of the Workplace
Gender Equality Act 2012 (Act), Breville Pty Limited lodged
its annual compliance report with the Workplace Gender
Equality Agency. This report is available on the company’s
website at the corporate, corporate governance section.

Evaluating the performance of the board
The chairman is responsible for evaluating the board’s
performance by way of an annual internal assessment.
Each director provides written feedback in relation to the
performance of the board and directors against a set of
agreed criteria. This feedback is reported by the chairman to
the board following the assessment. This performance
assessment was completed by the chairman during the year.

Evaluating the performance of key executives
The performance of key executives is reviewed against
specific and measurable qualitative and quantitative
performance criteria and includes:

financial measures of the company’s performance;

development and achievement of strategic objectives;

development of management and staff;

compliance with legislative and company policy
requirements; and

achievement of key performance indicators.

Performance evaluation

30 June
2014

30 June
2015

Target
by June
2018

All key executives were subject to a performance review as
described above during the reporting period.

Women on the board

14%

14%

25%

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value

Women in senior
executive roles

17%

23%

25%

Women in senior roles

26%

27%

30%

Women in company

55%

50%

50%

Board composition

Senior executives are direct reports to the CEO or a
business unit manager. Senior roles include senior
executives and direct reports to senior executives or other
employees with a strategically important role.
To assist the board in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation
to diversity, the implementation of these objectives is
overseen by the people and performance committee.

The company’s constitution states that there must be a
minimum of three directors and contains detailed provisions
concerning the tenure of directors. The board currently
comprises seven non-executive directors. The directors’
report, on pages 5 and 6, outlines the relevant skills,
experience and expertise held by each director in office at
the date of this report.
In accordance with good corporate governance, where the
chairman of the board is not an independent director, the
board considers it to be useful and appropriate to designate
an independent director to serve in a lead capacity to coordinate the activities of the other independent directors,
including acting as principal liaison between the independent
directors and the chairman and representing the board as
the lead independent director when the chairman is unable
to do so because of his non independent status.
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Corporate governance statement continued
Principle 2: Structure the board to add value
continued

Nomination committee
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the company did not
have a separately established nomination committee.

Board composition continued
As Mr Fisher is not an independent director, the board has
appointed Mr Myers as its lead independent director.

Director independence
In considering whether a director is independent, the board
refers to the company’s “Criteria for assessing independence
of directors” at the corporate, corporate governance section
of the company’s website, which is consistent with the
council’s recommendations. Independent directors of the
company are those that are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the company and are free from any real or
reasonably perceived business or other relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their unfettered
and independent judgement.
In accordance with the definition of independence above,
and the materiality thresholds outlined in the company’s
policy ‘Criteria for assessing independence of directors’, it is
the board’s view that Mr Dean Howell, Mr Lawrence Myers
and Mr Samuel Weiss are independent directors. The
following directors are not independent directors:

Mr Steven Fisher (non-executive chairman) is
employed by an entity associated with a substantial
shareholder of the company;

Mr Tim Antonie (non-executive director) is a nonexecutive director of Premier Investments Ltd, a
substantial shareholder of the company;

Ms Sally Herman (non-executive director) is a nonexecutive director of Premier Investments Ltd, a
substantial shareholder of the company; and

Mr Steven Klein (non-executive director) is a principal
of SBA Law which is a professional adviser to the
company.
Regardless of whether directors are defined as independent,
all directors are expected to bring independent views and
judgement to board deliberations.

Material personal interest requirement
The Corporations Act provides that unless agreed by the
board, where any director has a material personal interest in
a matter, the director will not be permitted to be present
during discussions, or to vote on the matter.

Access to independent advice
There are procedures in place to enable directors, in
connection with their duties and responsibilities as directors,
to seek independent professional advice at the expense of
the company. Prior written approval of the chairman is
required, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

Board committees
The board has established the audit and risk committee and
people and performance committee to assist in the execution
of its duties and to allow detailed consideration of complex
issues. The composition of these committees is shown on
page 23.

All duties and responsibilities typically delegated to such a
committee are the responsibility of the full board. Although
the council’s recommendation 2.1 recommends that a
nomination committee can be a more efficient mechanism
for the detailed examination of selection and appointment
practices, particularly in larger companies, the board does
not believe at this time that any marked efficiencies or
enhancements would be achieved by the creation of a
separate nomination committee.
The board brings independent judgement to decisions
regarding the composition of the board. The process of
recruiting a new director includes the evaluation of relevant
skills, knowledge, experience, independence and diversity.
The board endeavours to ensure appropriate succession
planning, both at a board and senior executive level.

Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible
decision-making
Code of conduct
The board has formally adopted a code of conduct (“code”)
for all employees (including directors). The code aims at
maintaining the highest ethical standards, corporate
behaviour and accountability across the group. These
obligations are also consistent with the duties imposed on
directors by the Corporations Act. In addition, directors are
obliged to be independent in judgement and to ensure that
all reasonable steps are taken to be satisfied as to the
soundness of board decisions.

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial
reporting
Audit and risk committee
The board has an audit and risk committee (A&RC), which
operates under a charter approved by the board. It is the
board’s responsibility to ensure that an effective internal
control framework exists within the consolidated entity. This
includes internal controls to deal with both the effectiveness
and efficiency of significant business processes, the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the reliability of financial information.
The board has delegated the responsibility for the
establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal
control and ethical standards of the company to the A&RC.
Among its responsibilities, the A&RC:

ensures that company accounting policies and
practices are in accordance with current and emerging
accounting standards;

reviews all accounts of the group to be publicly
released;

recommends to the board the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors;

reviews the scope of external audits;

assesses the performance and independence of the
external auditors, including procedures governing
partner rotation;

reviews corporate governance practices;
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Corporate governance statement continued
Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial
reporting continued
Audit and risk committee continued



monitors and assesses the systems for internal
compliance and control, legal compliance and risk
management; and
reviewed and carried out an annual assessment of the
company’s risk management framework.

Composition of committee
The members of the A&RC as at the date of this report are:

Mr Lawrence Myers (chairman)

Mr Dean Howell

Mr Samuel Weiss
Effective 20 August 2014, Mr Steven Fisher and Mr Steven
Klein resigned from the A&RC. The directors’ report, on
page 23, outlines the number of A&RC meetings held during
the year and the names of the attendees at those meetings.
It also outlines the qualifications of A&RC members on
pages 5 and 6.
The group chief executive officer; company secretary; group
chief financial officer; the external auditors and any other
persons considered appropriate may attend meetings of the
A&RC by invitation. The committee also meets from time to
time with the external auditors independent of management.
In accordance with the council’s recommendation 4.2, the
A&RC is structured so that it:

comprises only non-executive directors;

comprises only independent directors;

is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of
the board; and

has at least three members.
In accordance with the council’s recommendation 4.2 the
group chief executive officer and group chief financial officer
provided the board with a written declaration confirming that
the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of
the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that the system
operated effectively in all material respects.

Principle 5: Make timely and balanced
disclosure
The company’s continuous disclosure policy complies with
the council’s recommendation 5.1. This policy is available on
the company’s website at the corporate, corporate
governance section.

Principle 6: Respect the rights of
shareholders
Communication policy
The company is committed to providing all shareholders with
comprehensive, timely and equal access to information
about its activities to enable them to make informed
investment decisions. The company’s shareholder
communication policy is available on the company’s website
at the corporate, corporate governance section.

Electronic communication
The company’s website displays recent ASX
announcements and contains information about the
company.
Shareholders can elect to receive communications from the
company’s share registry electronically which also gives
shareholders the opportunity to manage their account details
and holdings electronically. Shareholders are also able to
send communications to the company and receive
responses to these communications electronically.

Briefings
The company keeps a record of briefings held with investors
and analysts, including a record of those present and the
time and place of the meeting.

Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk
The company is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities including financial, operational, compliance, ethical
conduct, brand and product quality risks. The company has
embedded in its management and reporting systems a
number of risk management controls.
These include:

guidelines and limits for approval of capital
expenditure;

policies and procedures for the management of
financial risk and treasury operations including
exposures to foreign currencies and movements in
interest rates;

annual budgeting and monthly reporting systems for all
businesses which enable the monitoring of progress
against performance targets and the evaluation of
trends;

policies and procedures which enable management of
the company’s material business risks;

formal strategic planning sessions; and

presentation of periodic reports to the board and the
A&RC identifying items that represent a potential risk
and the manner in which these are being managed
and responded to.
Breville does not have an internal audit function and
management is ultimately responsible to the board for the
system of internal control and risk management and has
reported to the board as to the effectiveness of the
company’s management of its material business risks. The
A&RC assists the board in monitoring this function.
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the company did not
have a separately established risk committee. All duties and
responsibilities typically delegated to such a committee are
the responsibility of the full board, with assistance from the
A&RC.
The Group’s exposure to economic, environmental and
social sustainability risks, together with how these risks are
managed, are detailed in the Operating and Financial
Review section of the Directors report.
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Corporate governance statement continued
Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and
responsibly
People and performance committee
The board has a people and performance committee,
comprising the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Mr Samuel Weiss (chairman)

Mr Steven Fisher

Ms Sally Herman

Mr Dean Howell

Mr Lawrence Myers
In accordance with the council’s recommendation 8.1, the
people and performance committee comprises:

an independent chairman; and

at least three members.
The majority of the people and performance committee is
considered to be independent as at the date of this report,
although of the five committee members, Mr Steven Fisher
and Ms Sally Herman are considered not to be independent
for the reasons noted above.
For details on the number of meetings of the people and
performance committee held during the year and the
attendees at those meetings, refer to the directors’ report on
page 23.

Remuneration disclosure
For details of the company’s remuneration philosophy and
framework, and the remuneration received by directors and
executives in the current period, please refer to the
remuneration report contained in the directors’ report on
pages 12 to 23.
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Income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2015

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

2(a)
2(b)

527,036
(353,967)
173,069

541,615
(365,421)
176,194

Other income
Employee benefits expenses
Premises, lease & utilities expenses
Advertising and marketing expenses
Other expenses
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation & amortisation (EBITDA)

2(c)
2(f)

787
(48,671)
(10,195)
(23,464)
(14,505)
77,021

1,386
(48,023)
(10,911)
(25,393)
(15,306)
77,947

Depreciation & amortisation expense
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)

2(d)

(7,421)
69,600

(7,499)
70,448

Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before income tax

2(g)
2(g)

(2,517)
680
67,763

(1,939)
863
69,372

3

(21,083)

(20,607)

46,680

48,765

Cents

Cents

35.88
35.88

37.48
37.48

Income tax expense
Net profit after income tax for the year attributable to members of
Breville Group Limited

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of Breville Group Limited:
- basic earnings per share
- diluted earnings per share

4
4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.

31

Appendix 4E
Preliminary final report
30 June 2015

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Note
Net profit after income tax for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges
Income tax on other comprehensive income and other items taken
directly to equity
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income
tax
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
members of Breville Group Limited

20(a)
20(c)
3

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

46,680

48,765

6,979
3,906

(690)
(4,089)

(1,296)

1,794

9,589

(2,985)

56,269

45,780

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of comprehensive income.
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Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2015

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

6
7
8
9
3
10

54,634
87,341
108,323
2,548
556
1,406
254,808

70,885
78,442
94,274
7
1,110
2,629
247,347

11
3
12
13

12,855
6,238
56,877
30,494
106,464
361,272

6,860
7,164
50,333
24,558
88,915
336,262

15
16
3
17
18

88,612
76
3,457
9,877
604
102,626

81,793
56
5,037
9,056
1,967
97,909

4,295
21,768
1,178
27,241
129,867
231,405

23,780
1,527
25,307
123,216
213,046

140,050
(5,134)
96,489
231,405

140,050
(11,938)
84,934
213,046

Note
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other financial assets
Current tax assets
Other assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets – other
Intangible assets – goodwill
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Provisions
Other financial liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity

16
17

19
20
21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2015
Issued
capital

Reserves

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

138,368

(7,165)

69,993

201,196

-

(690)
(4,089)
1,794
(2,985)

-

(690)
(4,089)
1,794
(2,985)

-

(2,985)

48,765
48,765

48,765
45,780

5(a)

-

-

(33,824)

(33,824)

19(b)
19(b)
20(b)

(1,041)
2,723
140,050

(2,723)
935
(11,938)

84,934

(1,041)
935
213,046

20(a)
20(c)
3

-

6,979
3,906
(1,296)
9,589

-

6,979
3,906
(1,296)
9,589

-

9,589

46,680
46,680

46,680
56,269

5(a)

-

-

(35,125)

(35,125)

19(b)
19(b)
20(b)

(2,620)
2,620
140,050

(2,620)
(165)
(5,134)

96,489

(2,620)
(165)
231,405

Note

At 1 July 2013
Foreign currency translation reserve
Cash flow hedges
Income tax on items taken directly to equity
Net loss recognised directly in equity

20(a)
20(c)
3

Profit for the year
Total recognised (loss)/income for the year
Dividends paid
Ordinary shares acquired by the Trustee of the Breville
Group Performance Share Plan Trust
Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan
Share-based payments
At 30 June 2014
Foreign currency translation reserve
Cash flow hedges
Income tax on items taken directly to equity
Net income recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year
Total recognised income for the year
Dividends paid
Ordinary shares acquired by the Trustee of the Breville
Group Performance Share Plan Trust
Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan
Share-based payments
At 30 June 2015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of changes in equity.
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Payment for surrender of lease
Finance costs paid
Income tax paid
Finance income received
Net cash flows from operating activities

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

6(b)

557,104
(491,472)
(2,134)
(18,506)
680
45,672

592,001
(514,005)
(5,445)
(1,939)
(20,323)
863
51,152

(8,377)
14
(14,141)
(22,504)

(4,268)
33
(8,360)
228
(12,367)

21,609
(28,212)

49,577
(48,726)

(2,620)
(35,125)
(44,348)

(1,041)
(33,824)
(34,014)

(21,180)

4,771

70,885
4,928

66,550
(436)

54,633

70,885

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Irretrievable cash contributions paid to the Trustee of the Breville
Group Performance Share Plan Trust to acquire ordinary shares
Equity dividends paid
Net cash flows used in financing activities

19(b)
5(a)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

6(a)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this cash flow statement.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Breville Group Limited is a for profit company limited by shares
incorporated in Australia. Breville Group Limited shares are
quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange.
This financial report covers the consolidated entity comprising
Breville Group Limited and its subsidiaries (company or group).
A description of the group’s operations and of its principal
activities is included in the operating and financial review in the
directors’ report on pages 7 to 11. The directors’ report is
unaudited (except for the remuneration report) and does not
form part of the financial report.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which
has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards.
The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000)
unless otherwise stated under the option available to the
company under ASIC class order 98/100. The company is an
entity to which the class order applies.

(b) Statement of compliance
The financial report complies with Australian Accounting
Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of
accounting involves allocating the cost of the business
combination to the fair value of assets acquired and the
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition.

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions
The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often
determined based on estimates and assumptions of future
events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period are:
Impairment of goodwill & intangibles with indefinite useful
lives
The group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with
indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles
with indefinite useful lives are allocated. The assumptions used
in this estimation of recoverable amount and the carrying
amount of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives
are discussed in note 14.
Share-based payment transactions
The group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using either the
Black-Scholes or binomial option pricing model, using the
assumptions detailed in note 27.

(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of Breville Group Limited and its subsidiaries as at
30 June each year.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the group has
control. The group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the group controls another entity.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period, using consistent accounting policies.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intergroup balances and transactions, income and expenses and
profit and loss resulting from intra-group transactions have
been eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is obtained by the group and cease to be consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued
(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions continued
Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of
international business relationships and the long-term nature
and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made,
or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded.
The group establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations
of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a
wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in
the respective group company's domicile. As the group
assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
outflow with respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability
has been recognised.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
Warranty and faulty goods
Provision for warranty and faulty goods is recognised at the
date of sale of the relevant products, at the group’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the group’s
liability. Factors that could impact the estimated claim
information include the success of the group’s productivity and
quality initiatives, as well as parts and labour costs. The
related carrying amounts are disclosed in note 17.

(e) Business combinations
All identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
the business combination over the net fair value of the group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill. Any transaction costs incurred in connection with a
business combination are expensed as incurred.

(f) Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of the group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including certain inter-group revenue and
expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial information is
available.
Operating segments have been identified based on the
information provided to the chief operating decision makers
being the group chief executive officer and board of directors.
Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as
prescribed by AASB 8 Operating Segments are reported
separately. However, an operating segment that does not meet
the quantitative criteria is still reported separately where
information about the segment would be useful to the users of
the financial report.

(g) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Both the functional and presentation currency of Breville Group
Limited and its Australian subsidiaries are Australian dollars
(AUD or A$). Each entity in the group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.
(ii) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.
The functional currency of the foreign subsidiaries is either:
 USD - United States dollars (Breville Holdings USA, Inc.
and Breville USA, Inc.);
 HKD - Hong Kong dollars (HWI International Limited);
 CAD - Canadian dollars (HWI Canada, Inc., Holding HWI
Canada, Inc. and Breville Canada, L.P.);
 NZD - New Zealand dollars (Breville New Zealand
Limited);
 GBP – British pounds (BRG Appliances Limited); and
 RMB – Chinese Renminbi (Breville Services (Shenzhen)
Company Limited).
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(g) Foreign currency translation continued
(ii) Transactions and balances continued
As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of these
foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation
currency of Breville Group Limited. They are translated at the
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the
income statements are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
The exchange differences arising on the retranslation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are taken directly to
a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.
(iii) Disposal of foreign operations
In some instances companies in the Breville Group provide
intra group funding to other group entities by way of permanent
equity loans. In these instances any foreign exchange
movements are recognised in equity (foreign currency
translation reserve) as these equity loans are considered to
form part of the net investment in the subsidiary.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash
at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.
Bad debts are written off when incurred. An allowance for
uncollectible receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts
due. The amount of the allowance is recognised in the income
statement.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on a
weighted average cost basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

(k) Derivative financial instruments and hedging
The group may use derivative financial instruments such as
forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts
and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with
foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities
when their fair value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives, except for those that qualify for hedge accounting,
are taken directly to the income statement for the year.
The fair value of forward exchange contracts and foreign
exchange option contracts are calculated by reference to
current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar
maturity profiles and where applicable exercise prices. The fair
value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by
reference to market values for similar instruments.
For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified
as cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to variability in
cash flows that is attributable either to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or to a forecast
transaction.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.
The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they were designated.
When accounting for foreign exchange option contracts, the
intrinsic value of the option is the only component subject to
the hedging relationship. The time value of money is excluded
from the hedge relationship.

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. This
includes the transfer from equity of gains and losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of purchases of finished goods.
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(k) Derivative financial instruments and hedging
continued
Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:
Cash flow hedges
Cash flow hedges are hedges of the group's exposure to
variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction and that could affect profit or
loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective
portion is recognised in income statement.
Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income
statement when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when hedged income or expenses are recognised or
when a forecast purchase occurs. When the hedged item is the
cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to
equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the
income statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously
recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to
occur, the amount is taken to the income statement.
A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is
accounted for as a cash flow hedge.

(m) Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination shall, from the acquisition date, be
allocated to each of the group’s cash generating units, or
groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the group are assigned to those
units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level within the
group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. When the recoverable amount of a cash generating
unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. When goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit
and an operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
manner is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating
unit retained.

(l) Plant and equipment

Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not
subsequently reversed.

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(n) Intangible assets - other

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful life of between 2 and 10
years.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
year end.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no further future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal.

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business
combination are initially measured at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair
value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is
charged against profits in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the time of
derecognition) is included in the income statement in the year
in which they arise.
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(n) Intangible assets – other continued
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a
change in accounting estimate. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income
statement in the expense category consistent with the function
of the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed each reporting period to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and is
thus accounted for on a prospective basis.
Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset
arising from development expenditure on an internal project is
recognised only when the group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
development and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
Following the initial recognition of the development
expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Any expenditure so
capitalised is amortised over the period of expected benefits
from the related project.
The carrying value of an intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during
the reporting period.
A summary of the policies applied to the group's intangible
assets is as follows:
Development costs
Internally
Internally generated
generated or
Acquired
Useful lives
Finite
Amortisation
Amortised over the period of expected future sales,
method used
not exceeding 3 years, from the related project on
a straight line basis.
Impairment
Annually and more frequently when an indication
test
of impairment exists. The amortisation method is
reviewed at each year end.

Computer software
Internally
Internally generated and acquired
generated or
Acquired
Useful lives
Finite
Amortisation
Amortised over the useful life, not exceeding 3
method used
years, on a straight line basis.
Impairment
When an indication of impairment exists. The
test
amortisation method is reviewed at each year end.
Brand names
Internally
Acquired
generated or
Acquired
Useful lives
Indefinite
Amortisation
No amortisation
method used
Impairment
Annually and more frequently when an indication
test
of impairment exists.
Customer Relationships
Internally
Acquired
generated or
Acquired
Useful lives
Finite
Amortisation
Amortised over the useful life, not exceeding 10
method used
years, on a straight line basis.
Impairment
Annually and more frequently when an indication
test
of impairment exists. The amortisation method is
reviewed at each year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment;
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are tested for possible
reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed.
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(p) Investments and other financial assets
Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as
either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through the income statement, directly attributable
transactions costs. The group determines the classification of
its financial assets after initial recognition and, when allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each year
end.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the group
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under
contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
(i) Financial assets at fair value through the income
statement
Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in
the category ‘financial assets at fair value through the income
statement’. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.
(ii) Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined
period are not included in this classification. Investments that
are intended to be held-to-maturity, such as bonds, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost is
computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
and discounts. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

(iv) Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as any of the three preceding categories. After
initial recognition available-for-sale investments are measured
at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a
separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is recognised in the income statement.
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the
balance sheet date. For investments with no active market, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models.

(q) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
group prior to the end of the year that are unpaid and arise
when the group becomes obliged to make future payments in
respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.
Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to
be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are
recognised in trade and other payables in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date. They are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave
are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at
the rates paid or payable.
Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised
as an expense as they become payable.

(iii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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(r) Share-based payment transactions
Equity settled transactions
The group provides benefits to employees (including key
management personnel) in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or
rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). Refer to note
27 for details.
The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value has been determined by an external valuer using a Black
Scholes or binomial model, further details of which are given in
note 27.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the
price of the shares of Breville Group Limited (market
conditions), if applicable.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
(the vesting period), ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting
date).
At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative
charge to the income statement is the product of (i) the grant
date fair value of the award; (ii) the current best estimate of the
number of awards that will vest, taking into account such
factors as the likelihood of employee turnover during the
vesting period and the likelihood of non-market performance
conditions being met; and (iii) the expired portion of the vesting
period.
The charge to the income statement for the period is the
cumulative amount as calculated above less the amounts
already charged in previous periods. There is a corresponding
entry to equity.
Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are
contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest
than were originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to
a market condition is considered to vest irrespective of whether
or not that market condition is fulfilled, provided that all other
conditions are satisfied.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

(s) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the income statement
net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are measured as the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.
Onerous contracts
An onerous contract is considered to exist when the group has
a contract under which the unavoidable cost of meeting the
contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits
estimated to be received. Present obligations arising under
onerous contracts are recognised as a provision to the extent
that the present obligation exceeds the economic benefit
estimated to be received.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the sharebased payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee, as measured at the date of modification.
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(s) Provisions continued
Warranties and faulty goods
Provisions for warranty and faulty goods are recognised at
the date of sale of the relevant products, at the group’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the group’s
liability.
Employee leave benefits - long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised as a
provision and measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is
given to the expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using appropriate
market yields at the reporting date to estimate the future
cash outflows.
Provision for make good
The provision for make good represents the value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of
restoration of leased premises under contracts that have
clauses potentially requiring these premises to be restored to
their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The
estimate may vary as a result of negotiations between the
parties at the end of the lease term.

(t) Borrowings
All borrowings, including cash advance facilities, are initially
recognised at the fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, borrowings, including cash advance
facilities, are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(u) Contributed equity

(ii) Ordinary shares held by the Breville Group
Performance Share Plan Trust
Ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance
Share Plan Trust in order to fulfil its obligations under the
Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan are
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement on the purchase of the group’s equity
instruments by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan
Trust.

(v) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer
and can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards are
considered passed to the buyer at the earlier of delivery of
the goods or the transfer of legal title to the buyer. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates.
(ii) Commission income
Where an agency relationship exists, the amount included in
revenue represents the commission received or receivable.
(iii) Finance revenue
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the
effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest
income over the relevant period using the effective interest,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
(iv) Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the group’s right to receive the
payment is established.

(i) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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(w) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

(x) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a
lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

(i) Group as a lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in
the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Any lease incentives are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

(ii) Group as a lessor
In some instances the group sub leases surplus operating
lease space. Rentals received under sub leases are
recognised as a reduction in operating lease expense. Future
rentals to be received under non-cancellable sub leases are
disclosed in note 24.

(y) Income tax and other taxes
(i) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amounts expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets/liabilities and their carrying
amounts at balance sheet date for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences except:
 when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
 when the taxable temporary difference is associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
 when the deferred income tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profit or loss; or
 when the deductible temporary difference is associated
with investments in subsidiaries in which case a deferred
tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.
Income taxes in relation to items recognised directly in equity
are recognised in equity and not in the income statement.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued
(y) Income tax and other taxes continued
(iii) Tax consolidation legislation
Breville Group Limited and its wholly-owned Australian resident
controlled entities (excluding the Breville Group Performance
Share Plan Trust) have implemented the tax consolidated
legislation as of 1 July 2003.
The head entity, Breville Group Limited and the controlled
entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax
amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated
group continues to be a stand alone tax payer in its own right.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit or loss
attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:
 cost of servicing equity (other than dividends);
 the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been
recognised as expenses; and
 other non-discretionary changes in revenue or expenses
during the period that would result from the dilution of
potential ordinary shares;
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus
element.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Breville
Group Limited also recognises:
(a) the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax
consolidated group; and
(b) assets or liabilities arising for Breville Group Limited under
the tax funding agreement as amounts receivable from or
payable to other entities in the group.

(aa) Comparatives

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with
the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the group.

The Group adopted all new and amended Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that became
applicable during the current financial year.

(iv) Other taxes
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of goods and services tax (GST) or value added tax
(VAT) except:
 where the GST/VAT incurred on the purchase of goods
and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the GST/VAT is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable; and
 receivables and payables, which are stated with the
applicable amount of GST/VAT included.

The adoption of these Standards and Interpretations did not
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial results or
statement of financial position.

Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and
repositioned for consistency with current year disclosures.

(ab) New accounting standards and interpretations
(i) Changes to accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year.

(ii) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective
Relevant accounting standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective are outlined below:
Impact on
Group

Title

Summary

Application Date

The net amount of GST/VAT recoverable/payable is included in
receivables/payables in the statement of financial position.

AASB 9:
Financial
Instruments

Hedge
accounting

Reporting periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2018

Immaterial
impact

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross
basis and the GST/VAT component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities are classified as operating
cash flows.

AASB 15:
Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers

Revenue
recognition

Reporting periods
beginning on or
after 1 January
2018

Immaterial
impact

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of
recoverable/payable GST/VAT.

The Group does not intend to adopt these standards early.

(z) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable
to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of
servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus
element.
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Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

526,525
511
527,036

539,922
1,693
541,615

311,543
20,413
22,011
353,967

321,616
20,646
23,159
365,421

787
787

1,386
1,386

2,414
51
4,774
182
7,421

2,119
110
5,270
7,499

7,244

8,587

(14)
53
2
973
2,966

(22)
606
37
158
593
2,755

46,482
2,354
(165)
48,671

44,904
2,184
935
48,023

Note 2. Revenue and expenses
(a) Revenue
Sale of goods
Commission income
Total revenue

(b) Cost of sales
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense (includes write-down
of inventory to net realisable value (note 8))
Costs of delivering goods to customers
Warranty provision
Total cost of sales

(c) Other income
Other income
Total other income

(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation – plant and equipment
Amortisation – computer software
Amortisation – development costs
Amortisation – customer relationships
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

11
12(b)
12(a)
12(d)

(e) Lease payments and other expenses included in
income statement
Included in premises, lease & utilities expenses:


Minimum lease payments – operating lease (excludes onerous
leases)

Included in other income/expenses:







Net profit on disposal of plant and equipment
Impairment of intangible assets – development costs
Doubtful debts charge
Bad debts written off
Net foreign exchange loss
Other product related costs

(f) Employee benefits expenses
Wages & salaries, leave and other employee related benefits
Defined contribution plan expense
Share-based payments expense
Total employee benefits expenses
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

338
1,306
873
2,517
(680)
1,837

503
1,436
1,939
(863)
1,076

4,774

5,270

8,961
13,735

8,260
13,530

20,337
52

19,145
(497)

694
21,083

1,959
20,607

(229)
300
1,225
1,296

(74)
(463)
(1,257)
(1,794)

Profit before income tax

67,763

69,372

At the parent entity’s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2014: 30%)

adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

effect of different rates of tax on overseas income

expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes

other
Income tax expense reported in the income statement

20,329
52
(544)
789
457
21,083

20,812
(497)
(670)
782
180
20,607

Note

Note 2. Revenue and expenses continued
(g) Finance costs/(income)
Finance costs paid or payable on borrowings and bank overdrafts:
- interest
- other borrowing costs
Interest on other payables – non current
Finance costs
Finance revenue
Total net finance costs

(h) Research and development costs
Amortisation of previously capitalised development costs included in
amortisation expense
Research and development costs charged directly to the income
statement
Total research and development costs

2(d)

Note 3. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense are:

Income statement
Current income tax
Current income tax charge
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

Deferred income tax
Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total income tax expense reported in the income statement

Statement of changes in equity
Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to
equity
Foreign currency translation differences
Employee equity benefits reserve
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of cash flow hedges
Income tax benefit reported in equity

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting
profit before income tax multiplied by the parent entity’s applicable
income tax rate is as follows:
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Statement of financial
position
30 June
30 June
2015
2014

Income statement
30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

1,875
4,587
495
24
6,981

1,875
4,106
8
229
6,218

(481)
(55)
(16)
-

(254)
(8)
-

93
7,211
1,595
1,988
867
(615)
218
1,862
13,219
6,238

166
5,347
2,290
885
610
1,278
2,806
13,382
7,164

(87)
1,155
516
(315)
(136)
(266)
(1,009)

(14)
(2,432)
(1,227)
207
118
1,651

(694)

(1,959)

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

556
3,457

1,110
5,037

Note 3. Income tax continued
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:

Deferred tax liabilities
Brand names
Development costs
Intangibles
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Foreign currency translation reserve
Gross deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Losses available for offset against future taxable income
Provisions and accruals
Other long term creditors
Employee benefits
Revaluation of inventories
Cash flow hedge reserve
Employee equity benefits reserve
Other
Gross deferred income tax assets
Net deferred income tax assets
Deferred tax (expense)/income

Current income tax
Current tax asset
Current tax liabilities

At 30 June 2015, there is no recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2014: $nil) for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain of the group’s subsidiaries, as the group has no current intention of distributing existing
retained earnings in jurisdictions where liability for additional taxation exists should such amounts be remitted.
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Note 3. Income tax continued
Tax consolidation
Breville Group Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries (excluding the Breville Group Performance Share Plan
Trust) have formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2003.
The head entity, Breville Group Limited, and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group are required to account for their own
current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be
a stand alone tax payer in its own right.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Breville Group Limited also recognises:
(a) the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group; and
(b) assets or liabilities arising for Breville Group Limited under the tax funding agreement as amounts receivable from or payable
to other entities in the group.
Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. The tax funding agreement supports the
calculation of current tax liabilities (and assets) and deferred tax assets/liabilities on a stand-alone basis. Calculation is performed
in accordance with AASB 112 Income Tax. The allocation of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an
increase/decrease in the subsidiaries' intercompany accounts with the tax consolidated group head company, Breville Group
Limited.
No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of the tax sharing agreement should the head entity
default on its tax payment obligations on the basis that the possibility of default is remote.

Note 4. Earnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

46,680

48,765

Thousands

Thousands

130,095

130,095

-

-

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Breville Group Limited

Weighted average number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings
per share
Weighted average number of exercised, forfeited or expired potential
ordinary shares included in diluted earnings per share

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares that would significantly change the
number of ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares outstanding between the reporting date and the date of completion of
these financial statements.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

(i)

16,912
16,912

15,611
15,611

(i)

18,213
18,213

18,213
18,213

35,125
35,125

33,824
33,824

16,912

16,912

3,051

3,989

1,254
4,305

2,567
6,556

(7,248)
(2,943)

(7,248)
(692)

Note 5. Dividends
(a) Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid
during the year:
Final franked dividend for the year ending 30 June 2014 of 13.0
cents per share (2014: final fully franked dividend for 2013 of
12.0 cents per share)

Paid in cash
Final dividend
Fully franked interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2015
of 14.0 cents per share (2014: interim dividend for 2014 of 14.0
cents per share (fully franked))

Paid in cash
Interim dividend
Total fully franked dividends declared and paid during the year
of 27.0 cents per share (2014: 26.0 cents per share (fully
franked))
(i) Total dividends paid in cash
Total dividends

(b) Dividends on ordinary shares proposed and not
recognised as a liability:
Final fully franked dividend for 2015 of 13.0 cents per share
(2014: final fully franked dividend of 13.0 cents per share)

(c) Franking credit balance
The amount of franking credits in the parent available for the subsequent year are:

franking account balance as at the end of the year at 30% (2014: 30%)

franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the
year
The amount of franking credits in the parent available for future reporting periods:

impact on the franking account of dividends proposed or declared before the financial report
was authorised for issue but not recognised as distribution to equity holders during the
period
Total franking credit balance
The tax rate at which dividends are franked is 30% (2014: 30%).
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

(a)

54,634

70,885

54,634
(1)
54,633

70,885
70,885

46,680

48,765

7,421
(165)
(14)
973

7,499
935
(22)
593

(3,246)
(5,596)
1,626
555
(160)

11,586
(10,978)
239
(206)
1,827

(3,913)
1,511
45,672

(9,322)
236
51,152

Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand

Notes:
(a) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
(b) At 30 June 2015, the Group had available $25,287,000 (2014: $30,438,000) of undrawn
committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.
(c) The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $54,633,000 (2014: $70,885,000).

(a) Reconciliation of cash flow statement:
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following at 30 June:
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft
Total cash and cash equivalents, net

16

(b) Reconciliation of net profit after tax for the year to net
cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Share-based payments
Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Foreign exchange losses
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Non-current assets
(Decrease)/increase in:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net cash flows from operating activities

(c) Disclosure of financing facilities
Refer to note 16.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

Trade receivables
Allowance for uncollectible receivables
Trade receivables, net

(a)
(b)

86,696
(267)
86,429

78,085
(192)
77,893

Other receivables
Total current trade and other receivables

(c)

912
87,341

549
78,442

Note 7. Trade and other receivables
Current

Notes:
(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. An allowance for uncollectible receivables
is made when there is objective evidence on a case by case basis that a trade receivable is impaired. A charge of $53,000
(2014: $37,000) has been recognised by the group as an expense in ‘other expenses’ for the current year for specific debtors
for which such evidence exists. The amount of the allowance/impairment loss has been measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the trade receivables and the estimated future cash flows expected to be received from the relevant
debtors.
(b) Movements in the allowances for uncollectible receivables are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Charge for the year
Net foreign exchange
Amounts utilised
Balance at end of year

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

192
53
22
267

291
37
(5)
(131)
192
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Note 7. Trade and other receivables continued
At 30 June 2015 an ageing analysis of those trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as follows:

1 – 30 days overdue
31 – 60 days overdue
61+ days overdue
Total past due but not impaired

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

9,103
1,204
381
10,688

16,219
122
10
16,351

Trade receivables past due but not impaired amount to $10,688,000 (2014: $16,351,000). Of this balance, $9,040,000 (2014:
$13,803,000) is covered by insurance to be used in the event of default of payment. In all instances each operating unit has been
in contact with the relevant debtor and is satisfied that payment will be received in full.
(c) Non-trade other receivables are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms between 30 and 60 days.
Balances within other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that these balances will be
received when due.
The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the trade and other receivables is assumed to approximate their fair value,
being the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between willing parties.
Details regarding the effective interest rate and credit risk of current receivables are disclosed in note 23.

Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

89,849
18,474
108,323

77,652
16,622
94,274

Note 8. Inventories
Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stock in transit (at cost)
Total inventories

(a)

Notes:
(a) Total net finished goods provision movements recognised in the income statement totalled a $962,000 credit (2014:
$1,019,000 expense) for the group. This net credit (2014: expense) is included in the cost of inventories line in the cost of
sales.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

2,548
2,548

7
7

1,406
1,406

2,629
2,629

(i)

28,763
(21,903)
6,860

25,896
(22,157)
3,739

(i)

32,081
(19,226)
12,855

28,763
(21,903)
6,860

6,860
8,082
107
(2,414)
220
12,855

3,739
5,174
(11)
(2,119)
77
6,860

16,730
6,919
31,575
1,653
56,877

13,543
5,215
31,575
50,333

Note

Note 9. Other financial assets
Derivative assets
Forward exchange contracts – cash flow hedges
Total other financial assets

Notes:
Derivative assets represent the fair value receivable arising from forward exchange contracts
disclosed in note 18.

Note 10. Other assets
Prepayments
Total other assets

Note 11. Plant and equipment
At the beginning of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount

(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Depreciation
Net exchange difference
Carrying amount at the end of year

2(d)

Note 12. Intangible assets – other
Development costs
Computer software
Brand names
Customer relationships
Total intangible assets - other

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
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Note 12. Intangible assets – other continued
Notes:
Development costs are internally generated and have been capitalised at cost. This intangible asset has been assessed as
having a finite life and is amortised using the straight line method over a maximum period of 3 years. If an impairment indication
arises, the recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount is
lower than the carrying amount.
Computer software is internally developed and purchased computer software that has been capitalised into other intangible
assets at cost.
Brand names include intangible assets acquired through previous business combinations. These intangible assets have been
determined to have indefinite useful lives as the economic benefits which are obtained from them are expected to be ongoing.
The cost model is utilised for their measurement. These assets were tested for impairment as at 30 June 2015 (see note 14).
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the group acquired the culinary division of the USA based business PolyScience for
consideration of $4,757,000 plus an earn-out which is included in other payables, resulting in goodwill of $5,936,000 and
customer relationships of $1,835,000.
30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

(i)

40,034
(26,491)
13,543

36,383
(23,543)
12,840

(i)

48,001
(31,271)
16,730

40,034
(26,491)
13,543

13,543
7,966
(5)
(4,774)
16,730

12,840
6,579
(606)
(5,270)
13,543

(i)

6,850
(1,635)
5,215

5,631
(2,611)
3,020

(i)

8,679
(1,760)
6,919

6,850
(1,635)
5,215

Note

(a) Development costs
At the beginning of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions – internal development
Impairment
Reclassification
Amortisation
Carrying amount at the end of year

2(e)
2(d)

(b) Computer software
At the beginning of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

5,215
1,851
(102)
(51)
6
6,919

3,020
2,303
(110)
2
5,215

31,575

31,803

31,575

31,575

31,575
31,575

31,803
(228)
31,575

(i)

-

-

(i)

1,835
(182)
1,653

-

1,835
(182)
1,653

-

24,558

24,558

30,494

24,558

24,558
5,936
30,494

24,558
24,558

Note

Note 12. Intangible assets – other continued
(b) Computer software continued
(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions
Reclassification
Amortisation
Net exchange difference
Carrying amount at the end of year

2(d)

(c) Brand names
At the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
Net carrying amount

(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Disposals
Carrying amount at the end of year

(d) Customer relationships
At the beginning of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
At cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

2(d)

(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions
Amortisation
Carrying amount at the end of year

Note 13. Intangible assets – goodwill
At the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

At the end of the year
Net carrying amount

(i) Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Carrying amount at the beginning of year
Additions
Carrying amount at the end of year
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Note 14. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives
Goodwill and brand names acquired through business combinations have been allocated to cash generating units for
impairment testing as follows:

Breville Group

Breville Australia

North America Distribution

New Zealand Distribution

Rest of World Distributors
In all cases the recoverable amount of the individual cash generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board.
The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 12.3% (2014: 12.8%). Cash flows beyond the approved 30 June 2016 budgets
are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate (2014: 3.0%), which is considered a reasonable estimate of the long-term average growth
rate for the wholesale consumer products industry.
Management has performed sensitivity testing by cash generating unit (CGU), based on assessing the effect of changes in
revenue growth rates as well as discount rates. Management consider any reasonable likely combination of changes in these key
assumptions would not result in the carrying value of the goodwill exceeding the recoverable amount.
30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

13,800

13,800

20,277
17,775
38,052

20,277
17,775
38,052

7,700

1,764

276

276

2,241

2,241

62,069

56,133

30,494
31,575
62,069

24,558
31,575
56,133

Note

Carrying amounts of goodwill and brand names are allocated as follows:
Breville Group
- brand names with indefinite useful lives
Breville Australia
- goodwill
- brand names with indefinite useful lives

North America Distribution
- goodwill
New Zealand Distribution
- goodwill
Rest of World Distributors
- goodwill

All cash generating units
- goodwill
- brand names with indefinite useful lives
Total carrying amount of goodwill and brand names

13
12(c)

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations for the cash generating units for 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections when determining the
value in use of the cash generating units.
 Budgeted gross margins – the basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on past
performance and expectations for the future.
 Bond rates – the yield on a ten-year government bond rate at the beginning of the budgeted year is used.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

(a)
28

85,207
3,405
88,612

78,437
3,356
81,793

Note 15. Trade and other payables
Current
Trade payables – unsecured
Employee benefits
Total current trade and other payables

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments:
(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.
The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the trade and other payables is assumed to approximate their fair value, being
the amount at which the liability could be settled in a current transaction between willing parties.
Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk exposure are disclosed in note 23.
30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

6(a)

1

-

75
76

56
56

21,745
23
21,768

23,687
93
23,780

Note 16. Borrowings
Current
Bank overdrafts – on demand

Other loans:
- Term loan
Total current borrowings

Non-current
Other loans:
- Cash advance facilities
- Term loan
Total non-current borrowings

Terms and conditions
The group operates under one primary facility with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ) enabling all
jurisdictions to borrow under one global facility. The facility agreement has a number of financial covenants all of which have
been fully complied with as at the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.
The Australia and New Zealand financing facilities are secured by a first ranking fixed and floating registered charge (or general
security for Breville New Zealand Limited), over all the assets and undertakings of Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty
Limited, Breville Holdings Pty Limited, Breville R&D Pty Limited and Breville New Zealand Limited and are guaranteed by
Breville Group Limited. The Hong Kong facility is secured via a security agreement over the assets and undertakings of HWI
International Limited. Breville Group Limited has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the local bank (HSBC) which provides
the day to day US, Canadian and UK transactional banking facilities. A security agreement in favour of ANZ is in existence over
the assets and undertakings of Breville USA, Inc. and BRG Appliances Limited.
Borrowings may include Australian dollar, US dollar, Canadian dollar, British pounds and New Zealand dollar denominated
amounts.

Fair value
The carrying value and estimated net fair values of the borrowings held with banks (determined under Level 2, as described in
note 18) approximates their fair value. Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing loans are determined by using a
discounted cash flow method using a discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.
The non-performance risk as at 30 June 2015 was assessed to be insignificant (2014: insignificant). Details regarding interest
rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk are disclosed in notes 18 and 23.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

(a)
(b)
(c)

25,557
29,185
54,742

26,672
36,398
63,070

21,745
1
509
3,157
145
25,557

23,687
503
1,947
535
26,672

17,556
7,731
509
282
3,107
29,185

15,693
1,987
12,758
502
1,752
3,706
36,398

39,301
7,732
1,018
3,439
3,252
54,742

39,380
1,987
12,758
1,005
3,699
4,241
63,070

Note 16. Borrowings continued
Financing facilities available
At reporting date, the following financial facilities have been
negotiated and were available to the group:
Facilities used at the reporting date
Facilities unused at the reporting date
Total facilities

(a) Facilities used at the reporting date:
- Non-current cash advance facilities
- Trade finance facilities
- Overdraft facilities
- Business transactions facilities
- Indemnity/guarantee facilities
- Documentary credit facilities
Facilities used as at reporting date

(b) Facilities unused at the reporting date:
- Non-current cash advance facilities
- Trade finance facilities
- Overdraft facilities
- Business transactions facilities
- Indemnity/guarantee facilities
- Documentary credit facilities
Facilities unused as at reporting date

(c) Total facilities:
- Non-current cash advance facilities
- Trade finance facilities
- Overdraft facilities
- Business transactions facilities
- Indemnity/guarantee facilities
- Documentary credit facilities
Total facilities

Seasonal facility
Under the primary facility with ANZ, the group also has a seasonal facility available between October 2015 - January 2016
(2014: October 2014 – January 2015) of $8,000,000 (2014: $10,000,000) and a seasonal facility available between September
2015 and March 2016 (2014: September 2014 – March 2015) of $11,056,191 (2014: $7,951,654). These facilities are under the
same terms and conditions as described above.
Borrowings may include Australian dollar, US dollar, Canadian dollar, British pounds and New Zealand dollar denominated
amounts.
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Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

7,815
2,002
60
9,877

7,203
1,449
220
184
9,056

1,178
1,178

1,461
66
1,527

Note 17. Provisions
Current
Warranty and faulty goods
Employee benefits – long service
Provision for make good
Onerous lease contracts
Total current provisions

28

(a)

Non-current
Employee benefits – long service
Onerous lease contracts
Total non-current provisions

28
(a)

Warranty
and faulty
goods

Employee
benefits long
service

Provision
for make
good

Onerous
lease
contracts

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

7,203
7,203

1,449
1,461
2,910

220
220

184
66
250

9,056
1,527
10,583

22,011
(22,393)
994
612

368
(122)
24
270

(220)
(220)

(213)
23
(190)

22,379
(22,948)
1,041
472

7,815
7,815

2,002
1,178
3,180

-

60
60

9,877
1,178
11,055

(a) Movement in provisions
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year:
Current
Non-current
Total

Movement in provisions during the year:
Additional provisions made in the year
Amounts utilised/reversed during the year
Net exchange differences
Net movement

Carrying amount at the end of the year:
Current
Non-current
Total

Warranty and faulty goods
A provision for warranty and faulty goods represents the present value of the best estimate of the future sacrifice of economic
benefits expected that will be required for warranty and faulty goods claims on products sold. This estimate is based on the
historical trends experienced on the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next year.
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranty and faulty goods were based on the level of warranty and faulty
goods claims experienced during the last year.
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Note 17. Provisions continued
Employee benefits – long service
The provision for employee benefits represents the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using appropriate market yields at the
reporting date to estimate the future cash outflows.

Provision for make good
The provision for make good represents the value of expected future payments to be made in respect of restoration of leased
premises under contracts that have clauses potentially requiring these premises to be restored to their original condition at the
conclusion of the lease. The estimate may vary as a result of negotiations between the parties at the end of the lease term.

Onerous lease contracts
The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the present value of the future lease payments that the consolidated entity is
presently obligated to make in respect of onerous lease contracts under non-cancellable operating lease agreements, less
revenue expected to be earned on the lease including estimated future sub-lease revenue, where applicable. The estimate may
vary as a result of changes in the utilisation of the leased premises and sub-lease arrangements where applicable.

Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

604
604

1,967
1,967

Note 18. Other financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Forward exchange contracts – cash flow hedges
Total other financial liabilities

(i)

Instruments used by the group
Derivative financial instruments are used by the group in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations
in interest and foreign exchange rates.
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.
The fair value of all derivative assets and liabilities have been determined under Level 2.
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Note 18. Other financial liabilities continued
(i) Forward exchange contracts - cash flow hedges
The majority of the group’s inventory purchases from suppliers are denominated in US dollars (US$). In order to manage
exchange rate movements and to manage the inventory costing process, the group has entered into forward exchange contracts
to purchase US$. These contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted purchases and highly probable forecasted payments
and they are timed to mature when settlement of purchases or the payments are scheduled to be made.
The cash flows are expected to occur between 0-12 months from 1 July 2015 (2014: 0-12 months) and the cost of sales and
where applicable the sale of goods within the income statement will be affected in the next financial year as the inventory is sold
or the payments are made. At balance date, the details of outstanding contracts are:

Buy US$ / Sell Australian $
Buy US$ - maturity 0-12 months (2014: 0-12 months)
Buy US$ / Sell New Zealand $
Buy US$ - maturity 0-12 months (2014: 0-5 months)
Buy US$ / Sell Canadian $
Buy US$ - maturity 0-11 months (2014: 0-6 months)
Buy US$ / Sell British £
Buy US$ - maturity 0-10 months (2014: 0-6 months)
Buy CHF / Sell Australian $
Buy CHF – maturity nil (2014: 0-7 months)
Buy Euro / Sell Australian $
Buy Euro – maturity nil (2014: 0-8 months)

30 June 2015
Average
exchange
A$’000
rate

30 June 2014
Average
exchange
A$’000
rate

54,549

0.7910

34,658

0.8887

4,614

0.7278

1,731

0.8312

26,517

0.7992

10,587

0.9150

7,814

1.4919

2,348

1.6757

-

-

538

0.8367

-

-

1,531

0.6859

The cash flow hedges of the forecast purchases and forecast payments are considered to be highly effective and any gain or loss
on the contracts is taken directly to equity. Where the contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted inventory purchases, when
the inventory is received the amount recognised in equity is adjusted to the inventory account in the balance sheet. Where the
contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted payments, when the payments are made the amount recognised in equity is
adjusted to the income statement. During the year $2,970,000 was debited to inventory (2014: $1,099,000 credited) and
$6,872,000 was debited (2014: $2,947,000 debited) to equity in respect of the group.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

(a)

140,050

140,050

(b)

140,050

140,050

Note

Note 19. Issued capital
Ordinary shares – authorised, issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares – held by the Breville Group Performance Share
Plan Trust
Total contributed equity

Ordinary shares are held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville
Group Limited Performance Rights Plan. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any,
are yet to be allocated to LTI participants. They will be allocated to participants once performance rights vest and they are
exercised. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, have the right to receive
dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the company, to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus
assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. The ordinary shares held by the Breville Group
Performance Share Plan Trust, if any, entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the company.
Details are provided in note 25(b) and note 27.
30 June 2015
Note

30 June 2014

Number of
shares

$’000

Number of
shares

$’000

130,095,322

140,050

130,095,322

140,050

(a) Movements in ordinary issued shares:
Beginning and end of the year

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

Number of
shares

$’000

Number of
shares

$’000

-

-

(249,000)

(1,682)

(i)

362,000

2,620

370,500

2,723

(ii)

(362,000)

(2,620)

(121,500)

(1,041)

-

-

-

-

Note

(b) Movements in ordinary shares held by the Breville
Group Performance Share Plan Trust:
Beginning of the year
Movements during the year
Transferred to participants of the Breville Group Limited
Performance Rights Plan
Ordinary shares acquired by the Breville Group
Performance Share Plan Trust during the year - cash
End of the year
(i)

During the year the Trustee of the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust transferred 362,000 ordinary company
shares (2014: 370,500) to participants in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights
Plan.

(ii) During the year the Trustee of the Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust acquired 362,000 ordinary shares (2014:
121,500) in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan. The average value placed
on these acquisitions was $7.24 per share (2014: $8.57). Details are provided in note 25(b) and note 27.

63

Appendix 4E
Preliminary final report
30 June 2015

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 19. Issued capital continued
(c) Performance rights over ordinary shares:
The company has a share-based payment performance rights scheme under which rights to subscribe for the company's shares
have been granted to certain executives and other employees (refer note 27). At the end of the year there were 558,000 (2014:
920,000) potential unissued ordinary shares in respect of performance rights that were outstanding.

Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

(2,430)
(4,033)
1,329
(5,134)

(9,638)
(948)
(1,352)
(11,938)

(9,638)
6,979
229
(2,430)

(9,022)
(690)
74
(9,638)

(948)
(165)
(2,620)
(300)
(4,033)

377
935
(2,723)
463
(948)

(1,352)
3,906
(1,225)
1,329

1,480
(4,089)
1,257
(1,352)

Note 20. Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Employee equity benefits reserve
Cash flow hedge reserve
Total reserves

(a)
(b)
(c)

(a) Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Currency translation differences
Tax effect of foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at end of year

(b) Movement in employee equity benefits reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Share-based payments expense
Transferred to participants of the performance rights plan
Tax effect of employee equity benefits reserve
Balance at end of year

(c) Movement in cash flow hedge reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Net gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Tax effect of net (gains)/losses on cash flow hedges
Balance at end of year

Nature and purpose of reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
This reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.

Employee equity benefits reserve
This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 27
for further details of these plans.

Cash flow hedge reserve
This reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined to be an
effective hedge.
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

Balance at beginning of the year

84,934

69,993

Net profit for the year attributable to members of Breville Group
Limited

46,680

48,765

(35,125)

(33,824)

96,489

84,934

Note

Note 21. Retained earnings

Dividends

5(a)

Balance at end of the year

Note 22. Operating segments
The group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers (group chief executive officer and board of directors) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of
resources.
The ANZ Distribution and North America Distribution operating segments distribute primarily small electrical appliances to retail
customers in their geographical locations. The Rest of World operating segment distributes primarily small electrical appliances
to distributors in international locations and also includes the UK business.
Other is not an operating segment and comprises the short term incentive plan and group’s shared service facility, including the
group’s design and development, global marketing and supply chain functions.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in note 1.
Transfer prices between operating segments are set at arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
The segment revenue and segment result include certain transfers between operating segments. Those transfers are eliminated
on consolidation.
Segment profit before income tax excludes certain transfer prices and includes an allocation of head office costs.
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Note 22. Operating segments continued
North
ANZ

America

Rest of

Distribution

Distribution

World

Other

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Year ended 30 June 2015
Revenue
245,122
245,122

202,573
511
203,084

78,830
7,870
86,700

26,725
26,725

526,525
511
34,595
561,631
(34,595)
527,036

EBITDA

19,571

32,245

20,427

4,778

77,021

Depreciation & amortisation

(1,223)

(388)

(86)

(5,724)

(7,421)

EBIT

18,348

31,857

20,341

(946)

69,600

654
(291)

12
(917)

7
(420)

7
(889)

680
(2,517)

18,711

30,952

19,928

(1,828)

67,763

3,444

321

92

4,225

8,082

Sale of goods
Commission income
Inter-segment revenue
Total segment revenue
Inter-segment elimination
Total consolidated revenue
Segment results

Finance revenue
Finance costs
Profit before income tax
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
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Note 22. Operating segments continued
North
ANZ

America

Rest of

Distribution

Distribution

World

Other

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Year ended 30 June 2014
Revenue
Sale of goods
Commission income
Inter-segment revenue
Total segment revenue
Inter-segment elimination
Total consolidated revenue

261,621
261,621

198,508
1,693
200,201

79,793
8,187
87,980

25,857
25,857

539,922
1,693
34,044
575,659
(34,044)
541,615

EBITDA

25,983

30,432

20,242

1,290

77,947

Depreciation & amortisation

(1,115)

(337)

(42)

(6,005)

(7,499)

EBIT

24,868

30,095

20,200

(4,715)

70,448

817
(367)

27
(912)

5
(507)

14
(153)

863
(1,939)

25,318

29,210

19,698

(4,854)

69,372

3,821

242

112

999

5,174

Segment results

Finance revenue
Finance costs
Profit before income tax
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
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Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprises cash advances, bank overdrafts, cash at bank and
short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the group’s operations. The group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The group
also enters into derivative transactions, including forward exchange contracts and at times, foreign exchange option contracts and
interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the group’s business operations
and its sources of finance. It is the group’s policy that no speculative trading in derivatives shall be undertaken. The main risks
arising from the group’s financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.
The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is estimated using market observable inputs. The fair values of these financial
instruments are disclosed in notes 9 and 18.

Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk on its borrowings, cash balances and derivative financial instruments. The group’s policy
is to manage its interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. Historically, fixed rate debt was achieved through the
use of interest rate swaps in which the group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. Cash advance facilities have short
term fixed interest rates with maturities ranging between 1 and 3 months, therefore within the financial year they are exposed to
interest rate risk.
At 30 June 2015, the group has the following exposure to interest rate risk:

Cash at bank
Bank overdraft – on demand
Cash advance facilities
Term loan
Net exposure

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

54,634
(1)
(21,745)
(98)
32,790

70,885
(23,687)
(149)
47,049

At 30 June 2015, 0% of the group’s borrowings (2014: 0%) are at a fixed rate of interest. The remaining 100% (2014: 100%) is
exposed to floating rates. On a principal net receivable of $32,790,000 (2014: $47,049,000), at an average payable rate including
margin of 1.1% (2014: 2.5%) and average receivable rate of 1.2% (2014: 1.4%), an increment of 0.5% in the market rates would
result in a decrease in finance costs of $382,000 (2014: $437,000), conversely a decrement of 0.5% in the market rates would
result in an increase in finance costs of $304,000 (2014: $323,000).
The group’s net exposure to interest rate risk calculated as at 30 June 2015 is not representative of its exposure during the
financial year due to seasonality in the volume of sales such that financial performance is historically weighted in favour of the half
to 31 December. This seasonality results in a higher level of receivable and inventory balances and a consequent increase in
working capital requirements. All of the group’s borrowings during the year (2014 average borrowings: 100%) are at a floating rate
of interest. On an average principal net receivable during the year of $26,042,000 (2014: $31,936,000), at an average payable
rate including margin of 1.1% (2014: 2.5%) and average receivable rate of 1.2% (2014: 1.4%), an increment of 0.5% in the market
rates would result in a decrease in finance costs of $130,000 (2014: $160,000), conversely a decrement of 0.5% in the market
rates would result in a decrease in finance costs of $102,000 (2014: $126,000).
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Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies continued
Foreign currency risk
The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currently and is exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.
Such exposure arises primarily from purchases of inventory by a business unit in currencies other than the unit’s functional
currency (purchases are predominately US dollar denominated). Other foreign exchange risk only arises when future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
To hedge exposure arising from the purchase of inventories or payments in currencies other than the business unit’s functional
currency, a combination of forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts may be utilised. At inception these
hedge contracts are designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the exposure to the variability in cash flows arising as a result of
movements in exchange rates below contracted exchange rates for options and for movements above or below a contracted
exchange rate for forward exchange contracts.
Also, as a result of the group’s investment in its overseas operations, the group’s balance sheet can be affected significantly by
movements in the exchange rates of the jurisdictions it operates within.
At 30 June 2015, the group has the following financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign currency risk:

Cash at bank
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Other financial assets – derivative assets
Other financial liabilities – derivative liabilities
Net exposure

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

12,439
2,013
(7,065)
2,548
(604)
9,331

1,442
2,287
(17)
7
(1,967)
1,752

At 30 June 2015, the group had hedged 79% (2014: 57%) of its foreign currency purchases extending to June 2016 (2014: June
2015). The remaining 21% (2014: 43%) is exposed to foreign exchange risk.
Of the total net exposure above, an increment of 10% in the foreign exchange rates would result in a decrease in other expenses
of $688,000 (2014: $335,000). A decrement of 10% in the foreign exchange rates would result in an increase in other expenses of
$801,000 (2014: $415,000).
In respect of net derivative assets and liabilities above, being the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow
hedges, a decrease of 10% in the US dollar exchange rate against local currencies, all other variables held constant, would result
in an increase in equity of $10,536,000 (2014: $5,215,000). Conversely, an increase of 10% in the US dollar exchange rate
against local currencies, all other variables held constant, would result in a decrease in equity of $8,620,000 (2014: $4,267,000).

Capital management
The board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business.
The board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The board monitors the group’s gearing ratio and compliance with
debt covenants on a regular basis. The group’s gearing ratio at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 is nil due to the group being in a
net cash position. The gearing ratio is defined as group net borrowings divided by capital employed (net borrowings plus
shareholders’ equity).
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Note 23. Financial risk management objectives and policies continued
Credit risk
Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted. The credit risk on financial
assets, excluding investments, of the group that has been recognised on the balance sheet is the carrying value amount, net of any
uncollectible receivables.
The group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In certain instances, where deemed appropriate, receivable insurance is
acquired to offset the group’s exposure to credit risk.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk across the group.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and
certain derivative instruments, the group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. These counter parties are large multi-national banks.
Since the group trades only with recognised third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk
The group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash advances and
bank overdrafts. The group’s bank facilities carry between a one and three year term in Australia, USA, Canada and the UK. As at
30 June 2015, 99.8% of the group’s borrowings will mature in greater than one year (2014: 99.6%) and 0.2% (2014: 0.4%) in less
than one year.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flows. See note 16 for details
of available facilities.
At 30 June 2015, the remaining contractual maturities of the group’s financial liabilities are:

Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

89,338
26,063
115,401

83,846
23,780
107,626

The table below analyses the group’s remaining contractual maturities by the type of financial liability. The amounts disclosed
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
30 June 2015
30 June 2014
Less
Between
Less
Between
than 1
1 and 5
than 1
1 and 5
year
years
Total
year
years
Total
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities

88,612
122
604
89,338

4,295
21,768
26,063

92,907
21,890
604
115,401

81,793
86
1,967
83,846

23,780
23,780

81,793
23,866
1,967
107,626

Contractual maturities disclosed in the tables above include contracted interest payments. Total borrowings disclosed in note
16 exclude such contracted interest payments.
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Note 24. Commitments and contingencies
Operating lease commitments – group as lessee
Operating leases are entered into mainly as a means of acquiring access to commercial property and storage facilities and the
use of minor items of plant and equipment. Rental payments are generally fixed; however certain property leases contain a
rental inflation escalation clause, an agreed rental percentage increase clause, a market rental review clause or a mix of these
clauses over the term of the operating lease.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not later than five years
More than five years
Total future minimum rentals payable

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

6,958
16,949
9,596
33,503

6,431
12,567
6,853
25,851

Contingent rentals are determined with reference to known existing rental payments and known rental increases during the
existing term of each operating lease.
No purchase options exist in relation to operating leases and no operating lease contains restrictions on financing or other
leasing activities. Certain property leases contain renewal option clauses.

Operating lease commitments receivable – group as lessor
The group has entered into commercial property leases for certain surplus office and warehouse space. Rental charges under
operating leases with sub lease tenants are generally fixed; however certain property leases contain a rental inflation escalation
clause, an agreed rental percentage increase clause, a market rental review clause or a mix of these clauses over the term of
the operating lease.
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

Within one year
Total future minimum rentals receivable

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

-

300
300

Contingencies
Indemnity agreements have been entered into with certain officers of the group in respect of expenses and liabilities they incur in
their official capacities. No monetary limit applies to these agreements and no known obligations have emerged as a result of
these agreements.
Cross guarantees given by Breville Group Limited, Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Holdings Pty Limited and Breville
Pty Limited are described in note 25(a).
Breville Group Limited has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the local bank (HSBC) which provides the day to day US,
Canadian and UK transactional banking facilities.
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Note 25. Related party disclosure
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Breville Group Limited and the subsidiaries listed in
the following table.
Equity interest
30 June
30 June
Country of
Legal entity
2015
2014
incorporation
Note
Thebe International Pty Limited
Investments not held directly by Breville Group Limited:
Breville Holdings Pty Limited
Breville Pty Limited
Breville R&D Pty Limited
Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust
Breville New Zealand Limited
HWI International Limited
Breville Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited
Breville Holdings USA, Inc.
Breville USA, Inc.
Holding HWI Canada, Inc.
HWI Canada, Inc.
Breville Canada, L.P.
BRG Appliances Limited

%

%

Australia

(a)

100

100

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
New Zealand
Hong Kong
China
USA
USA
Canada
Canada
Canada
UK

(a)
(a)

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

(b)

Breville Group Limited, a company incorporated in Australia is the ultimate parent of the group.

(a) Entities subject to class order relief
Pursuant to class order 98/1418, relief has been granted to Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville Pty Limited and Breville
Holdings Pty Limited from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of their financial
reports.
As a condition of the class order, Breville Group Limited and Thebe International Pty Limited entered into a Deed of Cross
Guarantee on 4 November 1999. This deed was subsequently assumed by Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty
Limited under an assumption deed dated 19 December 2001. The effect of the deed is that Breville Group Limited has
guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of either controlled entity or if they do not meet their obligations
under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee. The controlled entities have also
given a similar guarantee in the event that Breville Group Limited is wound up or if it does not meet its obligation under the
terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee.
The entities comprising the class order “closed group” are Breville Group Limited, Thebe International Pty Limited, Breville
Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited. The consolidated statement of financial position and income statement of the
entities that are members of the "closed group" are detailed in notes 25(i) and 25(ii).

(b) Breville Group Performance Share Plan Trust
A trust fund has been established with the appointment of an independent Trustee. The trust is funded by funds irretrievably
contributed to it by the company and the Trustee uses these funds to either subscribe for a new issue of shares in the
company or purchase shares on the ASX in order to fulfil its obligations under the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights
Plan.
The trust does not form part of the Breville Group Limited Australian tax consolidation group.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Trustee acquired 362,000 company shares (2014: 121,500). The average
value placed on these acquisitions was $7.24 per share (2014: $8.57).
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other financial assets
Other assets
Total current assets

30,018
51,118
50,261
1,991
571
133,959

36,181
51,439
48,255
7
614
136,496

Non-current assets
Other financial assets
Plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

22,414
11,691
73,286
98
107,489
241,448

22,084
11,008
55,637
2,030
90,759
227,255

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Provisions
Other financial liabilities
Total current liabilities

51,006
1
1,254
6,636
88
58,985

45,886
2,567
6,330
1,612
56,395

Non-current liabilities
Accounts payable
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

4,295
1,044
5,339
64,324

1,350
1,350
57,745

Net assets

177,124

169,510

Equity
Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity

140,050
(8,576)
45,650
177,124

140,050
(6,548)
36,008
169,510

Note

Note 25. Related party disclosure continued
(i) Consolidated statement of financial position for class order closed
group

25(ii)
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30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

25(i)

62,546
(17,779)
44,767
36,008
(35,125)
45,650

65,791
(17,305)
48,486
21,346
(33,824)
36,008

Note 25. Related party disclosure continued
(ii) Consolidated income statement for class order closed group
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities
Net profit
Accumulated profits at the beginning of the year
Dividends paid or reinvested
Accumulated profits at the end of the year

(a) Ultimate controlling entity
The ultimate controlling entity of the group in Australia is Breville Group Limited.

(b) Wholly owned group transactions
During the financial period, loans were advanced and repayments received on inter-group accounts with subsidiaries in the
wholly owned group. These transactions were undertaken on commercial terms and conditions.

(c) Key management personnel
Details relating to key management personnel, including remuneration paid, are included in the Remuneration Report and note
29.

Note 26. Parent entity information
As at and throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2015 the parent company of the group was Breville Group Limited.
30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

35,460
35,460

35,485
35,485

68,243
141,476
(1,253)
(1,253)
140,223

71,083
145,540
(2,567)
(2,567)
142,973

140,050
(4,033)
4,206
140,223

140,050
(948)
3,871
142,973

Results of the parent entity
Profit of the parent entity
Total comprehensive income of the parent entity

Financial position of the parent entity
Current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Issued capital
Employee equity benefits reserve
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity

Contingencies
The parent company has guaranteed under the terms of an ASIC class order any deficiency of funds if Thebe International Pty
Limited, Breville Pty Limited and Breville Holdings Pty Limited are wound up. No such deficiency currently exists.
The parent company has issued corporate guarantees in favour of the HSBC local banks in the US, Canada and the UK which
provides the day to day US, Canadian and UK transactional banking facilities.

74

Appendix 4E
Preliminary final report
30 June 2015

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 27. Share-based payment plans
Performance rights plan
Under the performance rights plan participants are issued with performance rights over the ordinary shares of Breville Group
Limited issued in accordance with the Breville Group Limited Performance Rights Plan (PRP).
An offer under the PRP grants a participant the right to a certain number of fully paid ordinary shares in the company. Upon
satisfaction of the performance hurdle, the right will vest and be convertible into shares. The company uses time-based and
financial-based hurdles. Earnings per share (EPS) is the financial-based performance hurdle for the LTI plan. EPS represents
the earnings per share from operations adjusted for non-trading items. The use of EPS ensures an alignment between
shareholder return and reward for participants.
In addition to the grant of performance rights awards which are subject to an EPS performance hurdle, performance rights
awards also may be granted in accordance with the PRP as a retention award where the performance condition is continued
employment with the company to vesting date.
If the performance hurdle is not met or if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, any unvested performance
rights will lapse unless otherwise determined by the board. There are no cash alternatives. The performance rights cannot be
transferred and are not quoted on the ASX. Holders of performance rights are not entitled to notice of, or attend, a meeting of
shareholders of the company, or receive any dividends declared by the company, until the rights have vested and then converted
into shares.
Once allocated, disposal of shares is subject to restrictions whereby board approval is required to sell the shares granted within
three years of the shares being allocated to the participant or; if the participant ceases to be employed by the company, within
twelve months of the date employment ceases; or such other date as the board determines.
In the event of a takeover bid where the bidder and its associates become entitled to at least 50% of the voting shares of the
company, any performance rights granted will vest where the board, in its absolute discretion, is satisfied that pro rata
performance is in line with any performance condition applicable to those performance rights. Any performance rights which do
not vest will immediately lapse, unless otherwise determined by the board.
At 30 June 2015 there are 558,000 (2014: 920,000) performance rights outstanding under this plan.
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Note 27. Share-based payment plans continued
Performance rights granted under the performance rights plan
The expense recognised in the income statement in relation to share-based payments is disclosed in note 2(f).
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (“WAEP”) of and movements in performance
rights issued during the year:

Note

30 June 2015
Number of
WAEP
performance
rights

30 June 2014
Number of
WAEP
performance
rights

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

920,000

0.0000

1,124,734

0.0000

Performance rights granted during the year

180,000

0.0000

203,000

0.0000

Performance rights exercised during the year

(362,000)

-

(370,500)

0.0000

Performance rights lapsed during the year

(180,000)

0.0000

(37,234)

0.0000

558,000

-

920,000

0.0000

-

-

-

-

Outstanding at the end of the year

(a)

Exercisable at the end of the year

Notes
(a) The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2015 is represented by:
Number of
performance
rights

Note
*

Grant

Vesting

Expiry

WAEP

date

date

date

$

122,500
122,500
65,000
65,000
18,000
82,500
82,500
558,000

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

02-Oct-12
02-Oct-12
02-Oct-13
02-Oct-13
10-Mar-14
7-Oct-14
7-Oct-14

03-Sept-15
03-Sept-15
02-Sept-16
02-Sept-16
02-Jan-17
04-Sept-17
04-Sept-17

05-Oct-15
05-Oct-15
05-Oct-16
05-Oct-16
02-Feb-17
05-Oct-17
05-Oct-17

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

Fair value
at grant
date ($)
4.73
4.73
7.61
7.61
8.58
6.10
6.10

(i)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 43.22 cents per share.

(ii)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2015 is at least 47.33 cents per share.

(iii)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 is at least 46.00 cents per share

(iv)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2016 is at least 49.20 cents per share

(v)

Performance condition being that the participant must be employed by the company on 31 December 2016.

(vi)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2017 is at least 46.50 cents per share.

(vii)

These performance rights vest if the group’s underlying EPS for the year ending 30 June 2017 is at least 51.50 cents per share.

*

In addition to the EPS performance hurdle, the participant must be employed by the company on the vesting date.
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Note 27. Share-based payment plans continued
The average remaining contractual life for the performance rights outstanding at 30 June 2015 is between 1 and 3 years (2014: 1
and 3 years).
The exercise price for performance rights outstanding at the end of the year was $nil (2014: $nil).
The weighted average fair value of performance rights granted during the year was $6.10 (2014: $7.70).
The fair value of the equity-settled performance rights granted under the performance rights plan, is estimated as at the date of
grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options and
performance rights were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the grants during the year ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014:

Grant date
Vesting date
Dividend yield (%)
Expected volatility (%)
Historical volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of performance right (years)
Performance right exercise price ($)
Weighted average share price at grant date ($)
Weighted average fair value at grant date ($)

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

(Black-Scholes)

(Black-Scholes)

7 Oct 14
4 Sep 17
3.50
35.00
35.00
2.65
2.9 years
0.00
7.10
6.10

10 Mar 14
2 Jan 17
3.50
35.00
35.00
3.00
2.8 years
0.00
9.93
8.58

2 Oct 13
2 Sep 16
4.00
35.00
35.00
2.86
2.9 years
0.00
8.96
7.61

The expected life of the performance rights is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of performance rights granted were incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

Note 28. Employee benefits

The aggregate employee benefit liability is comprised of:
Trade and other payables (current)
Provisions – long service (current)
Provisions – long service (non-current)
Total employee benefits

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

Note

$’000

$’000

15
17
17

3,405
2,002
1,178
6,585

3,356
1,449
1,461
6,266
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Note 29. Key management personnel

Note

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$’000

$’000

2,539
166
(19)
698
(274)
3,110

2,793
143
20
370
3,326

Compensation by category: key management personnel
Short-term
Post-employment
Other long-term
Termination payment
Share-based payment
Total

(i)

(i) This includes defined contribution plans expense of $166,000 (2014: $143,000).

30 June
2015

30 June
2014

$

$

Ernst & Young Australia – primary auditors
- an audit or review of the financial report

358,000

325,000

Ernst & Young Australia’s affiliates – primary auditors
- an audit or review of the financial report

308,600

260,500

Total auditor’s remuneration

666,600

585,500

Note 30. Auditor’s remuneration
Amounts received or due and receivable from the entity and any
other entity in the consolidated entity:

Note 31.Significant events after year end
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the year which significantly affected or may affect the operations of the
consolidated entity.
The financial report of Breville Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015 was authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 20 August 2015.
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Directorss’ declaration
In ac
ccordance with
h a resolution of the directors of Breville G
Group Limited
d, I state that:
1.

In the opinion
n of the directo
ors:
(a)

2.

the financial statementts and notes of
o the consolid
dated entity are
e in accordance with the Coorporations Ac
ct 2001, includ
ding:
(i)

giving a true and
a fair view of
o the consolid
dated entity’s financial
f
position as at 30 J une 2015 and
d of its
performance for the year ended on that d
date; and

(ii)

A
Sta
t Corporatio
ons Regulationns 2001;
complying witth Australian Accounting
andards and the

(b)

the financial statementts and notes also
a
comply wiith International Financial Reporting
R
Stanndards as disc
closed in note 1;

(c)

there are
e reasonable grounds
g
to believe that the C
Company will be able to pay
y its debts as aand when they become due
e and
payable; and

(d)

as at the date of this declaration, the
ere are reason
nable grounds
s to believe tha
at the memberrs of the Close
ed Group
identified
d in note 25(a)) will be able to
o meet any ob
bligations or lia
abilities to which they are orr may become
e subject, by virtue
v
of the De
eed of Cross Guarantee.
G

This declaratiion has been made
m
after rec
ceiving the de
eclarations req
quired to be made to the Dire
rectors in acco
ordance with
section 295A of the Corporrations Act 200
01 for the fina ncial year end
ded 30 June 2015.

b
of the b
board
On behalf

Stev
ven Fisher
Non--executive cha
airman
ney
Sydn
20 August
A
2015
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Breville Group Limited
Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Breville Group Limited (the “Company”), which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the
entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal controls as
the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting
Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included
in the directors’ report.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
In our opinion:
a.

b.

the fina
ancial reportt of Breville Group
G
Limited
d is in accord
dance with th
he Corporatiions Act 2001, including:
i

giiving a true and
a fair view of the conso
olidated entity's financial position as aat 30 June 20
015 and of itss
pe
erformance for
f the year ended
e
on tha
at date; and

ii

co
omplying with Australian Accounting S
Standards an
nd the Corpo
orations Reggulations 200
01; and

the fina
ancial reportt also complie
es with Intern
rnational Fina
ancial Reporrting Standarrds as disclos
sed in Note 1.
1

Rep
port on the remunerattion report
We have audited
d the Remun
neration Report included in pages 12 to 23 of the directors' repport for the year
y
ended 30
3
June
e 2015. The directors of the company
y are respon sible for the preparation and presenta
tation of the Remuneratio
R
on
Rep
port in accord
dance with se
ection 300A of the Corpo
orations Act 2001.
2
Our responsibility iss to express an opinion on
o
the Remuneratio
on Report, ba
ased on our audit conduccted in accorrdance with Australian
A
Auuditing Stand
dards.

Opinion
In our opinion, th
he Remuneration Reportt of Breville G
Group Limited for the yea
ar ended 30 JJune 2015, complies
c
with
h
secttion 300A of the Corporations Act 200
01.

Erns
st & Young

P S Barnard
Parttner
Sydney
20 August
A
2015

A mem
mber firm of Ernsst & Young Glob
bal Limited
Liability
y limited by a sccheme approved
d under Profess
sional Standard s Legislation
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Audditor’s Indeependence Declaration to the Dirrectors of Breville
B
Group Limited
In re
elation to ourr audit of the financial rep
port of Brevil le Group Lim
mited for the financial
f
yeaar ended 30 June
J
2015, to
the best of my knowledge an
nd belief, the
ere have bee n no contrav
ventions of th
he auditor inddependence requirementts of
the Corporationss Act 2001 or any applica
able code of professionall conduct.

Erns
st & Young

P S Barnard
Parttner
20 August
A
2015

A mem
mber firm of Ernsst & Young Glob
bal Limited
Liability
y limited by a sccheme approved
d under Profess
sional Standard s Legislation
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